

Programmable Controller



MELSEC iQ-F FX5 AnyWireASLINK System Master Module User's Manual

-FX5-ASL-M



This product is jointly developed and manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric and Anywire Corporation. *Note that the warranty on this product differs from that on other programmable controller products. (Refer to "WARRANTY" in this manual.)



COPYRIGHT

This document is protected by the law of copyright, whereby all rights established therein remain with the company Mitsubishi Electric Corporation. Reproduction of this document or parts of this document is only permissible within the limits of the legal determination of Copyright Law. Alteration or abridgement of the document is not permitted without the explicit written approval of the company Mitsubishi Electric Corporation.

PRECAUTIONS REGARDING WARRANTY

The FX5-ASL-M is jointly developed and manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric and Anywire Corporation. Note that there are differences in warranty.

Item	FX5-ASL-M	Other programmable controller products (e.g. MELSEC iQ-F series)
Repair term after discontinuation of production	1 year	7 years

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

(Read these precautions before use.)

Before using this product, please read this manual and the relevant manuals introduced in this manual carefully and pay full attention to safety in order to handle the product correctly.

This manual classifies the safety precautions into two categories: [MARNING] and [CAUTION].

Indicates that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in death or severe injury.
Indicates that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in minor or moderate injury or property damage.

Depending on the circumstances, procedures indicated by [(CAUTION] may also cause severe injury. It is important to follow all precautions for personal safety.

Store this manual in a safe place so that it can be read whenever necessary. Always forward it to the end user.

[DESIGN PRECAUTIONS]

- An AnyWireASLINK system has no control function for ensuring safety.
- Make sure to set up the following safety circuits outside the PLC to ensure safe system operation even during external power supply problems or PLC failure. Otherwise, malfunctions may cause serious accidents.
 - Most importantly, set up the following: an emergency stop circuit, a protection circuit, an interlock circuit for opposite movements (such as normal vs. reverse rotation), and an interlock circuit to prevent damage (to the equipment at the upper and lower positioning limits).
 - Note that when the CPU module detects an error, such as a watchdog timer error, during selfdiagnosis, all outputs are turned off. Also, when an error that cannot be detected by the CPU module occurs in an input/output control block, output control may be disabled. External circuits and mechanisms should be designed to ensure safe machinery operation in such a case.
- Construct an interlock circuit in the program so that the whole system always operates on the safe side before executing the control (for data change) of the PLC in operation.
 Read the manual thoroughly and ensure complete safety before executing other controls (for program change, parameter change, forcible output and operation status change) of the PLC in operation.
 Otherwise, the machine may be damaged and accidents may occur due to erroneous operations.
- Especially, when a remote programmable controller is controlled by an external device, immediate action cannot be taken if a problem occurs in the programmable controller due to a communication failure. To prevent this, configure an interlock circuit in the program, and determine corrective actions to be taken between the external device and CPU module in case of a communication failure.

[DESIGN PRECAUTIONS]

- Configure safety circuits, such as an emergency stop circuit and interlock circuit, external to the AnyWireASLINK system.
- Install module so that excessive force will not be applied to the terminal blocks.
 Failure to do so may result in wire damage/breakage or PLC failure.
- Simultaneously turn on and off the power supplies of the CPU module and extension modules.

- Make sure to cut off all phases of the power supply externally before attempting installation or wiring work. Failure to do so may cause electric shock or damage to the product.
- Use the product within the generic environment specifications described in the User's Manual (Hardware) of the CPU module used.

Never use the product in areas with excessive dust, oily smoke, conductive dusts, corrosive gas (salt air, CI_2 , H_2S , SO_2 or NO_2), flammable gas, vibration or impacts, or expose it to high temperature, condensation, or rain and wind.

If the product is used in such conditions, electric shock, fire, malfunctions, deterioration or damage may occur.

[INSTALLATION PRECAUTIONS]

- Do not touch the conductive parts of the product directly. Doing so may cause device failures or malfunctions.
- When drilling screw holes or wiring, make sure that cutting and wiring debris do not enter the ventilation slits of the PLC. Failure to do so may cause fire, equipment failures or malfunctions.
- For the product supplied together with a dust proof sheet, the sheet should be affixed to the ventilation slits before the installation and wiring work to prevent foreign objects such as cutting and wiring debris.

However, when the installation work is completed, make sure to remove the sheet to provide adequate ventilation. Failure to do so may cause fire, equipment failures or malfunctions.

- Install the product on a flat surface. If the mounting surface is rough, undue force will be applied to the PC board, thereby causing nonconformities.
- Install the product securely using a DIN rail or mounting screws.
- Work carefully when using a screwdriver such as installation of the product. Failure to do so may cause damage to the product or accidents.
- Connect the extension cables, peripheral device cables, input/output cables and battery connecting cable securely to their designated connectors. Loose connections may cause malfunctions.
- Turn off the power to the PLC before attaching or detaching the following devices. Failure to do so may cause device failures or malfunctions.
 - Peripheral devices, expansion board, expansion adapter, and connector conversion adapter
 - Extension modules, bus conversion module, and connector conversion module
 - Battery

[WIRING PRECAUTIONS]

- Make sure to cut off all phases of the power supply externally before attempting installation or wiring work. Failure to do so may cause electric shock or damage to the product.
- Make sure to attach the terminal cover, provided as an accessory, before turning on the power or initiating operation after installation or wiring work. Failure to do so may cause electric shock.
- The temperature rating of the cable should be 70°C or more.
- Make sure to properly wire to the terminal block (European type) in accordance with the following precautions. Failure to do so may cause electric shock, equipment failures, a short-circuit, wire breakage, malfunctions, or damage to the product.
 - The disposal size of the cable end should follow the dimensions described in the manual.
 - Tightening torque should follow the specifications in the manual.
 - Twist the ends of stranded wires and make sure that there are no loose wires.
 - Do not solder-plate the electric wire ends.
 - Do not connect more than the specified number of wires or electric wires of unspecified size.
 - Affix the electric wires so that neither the terminal block nor the connected parts are directly stressed.

[WIRING PRECAUTIONS]

- Connect the power supply wiring to the dedicated terminals described in this manual. If an AC power supply is connected to a DC input/output terminal or DC power supply terminal, the PLC will burn out.
- Do not apply the 24 V DC power before wiring the entire AnyWireASLINK system.
- Make sure to observe the following precautions in order to prevent any damage to the machinery or accidents due to malfunction of the PLC caused by abnormal data written to the PLC due to the effects of noise:
 - Do not bundle the power line and control line together with or lay them close to the main circuit, high-voltage line, load line or power line. As a guideline, lay the power line, control line and communication cables at least 100 mm away from the main circuit, high-voltage line, load line or power line.
 - Ground the shield of the shielded wire or shielded cable at one point on the PLC. However, do not use common grounding with heavy electrical systems.
- Place the cables in a duct or clamp them. If not, dangling cable may swing or inadvertently be pulled, resulting in damage to the module or cables or malfunction due to poor contact.
- When disconnecting the cable from the module, do not pull the cable by the cable part. For the cable connected to the terminal block, loosen the terminal screw. Pulling the cable connected to the module may result in malfunction or damage to the module or cable.

[STARTUP AND MAINTENANCE PRECAUTIONS]

- Do not touch any terminal while the PLC's power is on. Doing so may cause electric shock or malfunctions.
- Before cleaning or retightening terminals, cut off all phases of the power supply externally. Failure to do so in the power ON status may cause electric shock.
- Before modifying the program in operation, forcible output, running or stopping the PLC, read through this manual carefully, and ensure complete safety. An operation error may damage the machinery or cause accidents.
- Do not change the program in the PLC from two or more peripheral equipment devices at the same time. (i. e. from an engineering tool and a GOT) Doing so may cause destruction or malfunction of the PLC program.

[STARTUP AND MAINTENANCE PRECAUTIONS]

- Do not disassemble or modify the PLC. Doing so may cause fire, equipment failures, or malfunctions. For repair, contact your local Mitsubishi Electric representative.
- Turn off the power to the PLC before connecting or disconnecting any extension cable. Failure to do so may cause device failures or malfunctions.
- Turn off the power to the PLC before attaching or detaching the following devices. Failure to do so may cause device failures or malfunctions.
 - Peripheral devices, expansion board, expansion adapter, and connector conversion adapter
 - Extension modules, bus conversion module, and connector conversion module
 Battery
- Do not drop the product or exert strong impact to it. Doing so may cause damage.

[OPERATION PRECAUTIONS]

- Construct an interlock circuit in the program so that the whole system always operates on the safe side before executing the control (for data change) of the PLC in operation. Read the manual thoroughly and ensure complete safety before executing other controls (for program change, parameter change, forcible output and operation status change) of the PLC in operation. Otherwise, the machine may be damaged and accidents may occur by erroneous operations.
- Note that the whole system may not be reset by the RUN/STOP/RESET switch when the CPU module or intelligent function module detects an error, such as a watchdog timer error, during self-diagnosis. In that case, turn off and on the power.

[DISPOSAL PRECAUTIONS]

 Please contact a certified electronic waste disposal company for the environmentally safe recycling and disposal of your device.

The PLC is a precision instrument. During transportation, avoid impacts larger than those specified in the general specifications of the User's Manual (Hardware) of the CPU module used by using dedicated packaging boxes and shock-absorbing palettes. Failure to do so may cause failures in the PLC. After transportation, verify operation of the PLC and check for damage of the mounting part, etc.

INTRODUCTION

This manual contains text, diagrams and explanations which will guide the reader in the correct installation, safe use and operation of the AnyWireASLINK system master module of MELSEC iQ-F series and should be read and understood before attempting to install or use the module.

Always forward it to the end user.

This module was jointly developed by Mitsubishi Electric and Anywire Corporation. The module allows the AnyWireASLINK system to be connected to a MELSEC iQ-F series programmable controller system.

Regarding use of this product

- This product has been manufactured as a general-purpose part for general industries, and has not been designed or manufactured to be incorporated in a device or system used in purposes related to human life.
- Before using the product for special purposes such as nuclear power, electric power, aerospace, medicine or passenger movement vehicles, consult Mitsubishi Electric.
- This product has been manufactured under strict quality control. However when installing the product where major accidents or losses could occur if the product fails, install appropriate backup or failsafe functions in the system.

Note

- If in doubt at any stage during the installation of the product, always consult a professional electrical engineer who is qualified and trained in the local and national standards. If in doubt about the operation or use, please consult the nearest Mitsubishi Electric representative.
- Since the examples indicated by this manual, technical bulletin, catalog, etc. are used as a reference, please use it after confirming the function and safety of the equipment and system. Mitsubishi Electric will accept no responsibility for actual use of the product based on these illustrative examples.
- This manual content, specification etc. may be changed, without a notice, for improvement.
- The information in this manual has been carefully checked and is believed to be accurate; however, if you notice a doubtful point, an error, etc., please contact the nearest Mitsubishi Electric representative. When doing so, please provide the manual number given at the end of this manual.

CONTENTS

COPYRIGHT	1
PRECAUTIONS REGARDING WARRANTY	1
SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	2
NTRODUCTION	7
RELEVANT MANUALS	. 11
rerms	.12
GENERIC TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS	.13

CHAPTER 1 OUTLINE

14

16

20

CHAPTER 2 SPECIFICATIONS

2.1	General Specifications	.16
2.2	Power Supply Specifications	.16
2.3	Performance Specifications	. 17
2.4	Part Names	. 18
	LED display	.19

CHAPTER 3 PROCEDURES BEFORE OPERATION

CHAPTER 4 FUNCTION

СНА	CHAPTER 4 FUNCTION 22		
4.1	Function List	22	
4.2	AnyWireASLINK Transmission	23	
4.3	Double Verification	24	
4.4	Remote Address Change Function	25	
4.5	Same ID Used Detection Function	26	
4.6	Module with No ID Setting Detection Function	28	
4.7	Transmission Cable Short Detection Function	29	
4.8	Disconnected Transmission Cable Location Detection Function	30	
4.9	Transmission Cable Voltage Drop Detection Function	31	
4.10	Parameter Access Error Detection Function	32	
4.11	Error Status Automatic Recovery Function	34	
4.12	Remote Module Information Acquisition at Start-up Function	34	
4.13	Remote Module Parameter Read/Write	35	

CHAPTER 5 SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

	^
4	
-	~

5.1	System Configuration of AnyWireASLINK40
5.2	Power Supply to the AnyWireASLINK System
	Method of supplying the power to the remote module41
	Scope of the power supply with transmission cables (DP and DN)

CHAPTER 6 WIRING

CHAPTER 6 WIRING 45		
6.1	Terminal Block	
6.2	Wiring Method	
6.3	Wiring Product	
6.4	Wiring Precautions	
6.5	Power Supply/grounding Wiring	
	Power supply/grounding wiring	
	Grounding	

6.6	Connecting Remote Module or Terminating Unit	
СНА	APTER 7 PARAMETER SETTINGS	51
7.1	Parameter Setting Procedure	51
7.2	Basic Setting	
	Transmission points	
	Startup operating mode	
	Double verification	
	Error status automatic recovery	
7.3	Refresh Setting	
7.4	Remote Module Address Setting	
7.5	Automatic Address Detection Function	
	Executing the automatic address detection	
	Automatic address detection execution timing	
7.6	Automatic Reading of the System Configuration.	
СНА	APTER 8 PROGRAMMING	59
8.1	Precautions on Programming	
8.2	Communication of FX5-ASL-M with Remote Module	
	System configuration example	
	FX5-ASL-M setting	61
	Settings of the remote module	
	Checking the system status.	
	Program example	64
CHA	APTER 9 TROUBLESHOOTING	65
9.1	Checking with LED	
9.2	Checking Module Status	
	Checking with the buffer memory	
9.3	Troubleshooting by Symptom	
9.4	List of Error Codes	
APF	PENDIX	72
Арре	endix 1 External Dimensions	
Арре	endix 2 Standards	
	Certification of UL, cUL standards	
	Compliance with EU Directive (CE marking)	
	Requirement for compliance with EMC Directive	
	Caution for compliance with EU Directive	
	Compliance with UKCA marking	74
Арре	endix 3 Module Label	
Арре	endix 4 Buffer Memory	
	List of buffer memory addresses	
	Details of buffer memory addresses	
Арре	endix 5 Processing Time	
	Transmission cycle time	
	Update timing of I/O data	
	Response delay time	
	Parameter access response time	
Appe	endix 6 Added and Enhanced Functions	

CONTENTS

9

RELEVANT MANUALS

Manual name <manual number=""></manual>	Description
MELSEC iQ-F FX5S/FX5UJ/FX5U/FX5UC User's Manual (Hardware) <sh-082452eng></sh-082452eng>	Describes the details of hardware of the FX5 CPU module, including performance specifications, wiring, installation, and maintenance.
MELSEC iQ-F FX5 User's Manual (Application) <jy997d55401></jy997d55401>	Describes the basic knowledge required for program design, functions of the CPU module, devices/labels, and parameters.
MELSEC iQ-F FX5 Programming Manual (Program Design) <jy997d55701></jy997d55701>	Describes the specifications of ladder, ST, FBD/LD, and SFC programs, and labels.
MELSEC iQ-F FX5 Programming Manual (Instructions, Standard Functions/ Function Blocks) <jy997d55801></jy997d55801>	Describes the specifications of instructions and functions that can be used in programs.
MELSEC iQ-F FX5 AnyWireASLINK System Master Module User's Manual <sh-081796eng> (This manual)</sh-081796eng>	Describes the AnyWireASLINK system master module.
GX Works3 Operating Manual <sh-081215eng></sh-081215eng>	Describes the system configuration, parameter settings, and online operations of GX Works3.

Unless otherwise specified, this manual uses the following terms.

Term	Description
Address	A parameter assigned to a remote module to identify each node on the AnyWireASLINK network
Address writer	A hand-held device to read/write parameters (including addresses) from/to a remote module
AnyWireASLINK	A reduced wiring network where sensors at the end of a control system are connected to a programmable controller
Engineering tool	The product name of the software package for the MELSEC programmable controllers
ID	A parameter to identify whether the module is an input module or output module based on its address Output remote module ID: Address ID of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module: Address + 200H
Power cable (24V, 0V)	A cable that connects a 24 V DC external power supply to the FX5-ASL-M. This cable is also used when the isolation (4-line) type remote module and FX5-ASL-M are connected.
Terminating unit	A waveform shaper
Transmission cable (DP, DN)	A signal cable that connects between a remote module and the FX5-ASL-M
Transmission cycle time	A data sampling interval

GENERIC TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless otherwise specified, this manual uses the following generic terms and abbreviations.

Generic term/abbreviation	Description
ASLINKAMP	A generic term for sensor amplifiers that have an AnyWireASLINK interface
ASLINKER	A generic term for I/O devices that have an AnyWireASLINK interface
Battery	Another term for the FX3U-32BL
FX5	A generic term for FX5UJ, FX5U, and FX5UC programmable controllers
FX5 CPU module	A generic term for FX5UJ CPU module, FX5U CPU module, and FX5UC CPU module
FX5U CPU module	A generic term for FX5U-32MR/ES, FX5U-32MT/ES, FX5U-32MT/ESS, FX5U-64MR/ES, FX5U-64MT/ES, FX5U-64MT/ES, FX5U-64MT/ESS, FX5U-80MR/ES, FX5U-80MT/ES, FX5U-80MT/DS, FX5U-32MT/DS, FX5U-32MT/DSS, FX5U-64MR/DS, FX5U-64MT/DS, FX5U-64MT/DSS, FX5U-80MR/DS, FX5U-80MT/DS, and FX5U-80MT/DSS
FX5UC CPU module	A generic term for FX5UC-32MT/D, FX5UC-32MT/DSS, FX5UC-64MT/D, FX5UC-64MT/DSS, FX5UC-96MT/D, FX5UC-96MT/DSS, FX5UC-32MT/DS-TS, FX5UC-32MT/DSS-TS, and FX5UC-32MR/DS-TS
FX5UJ CPU module	A generic term for FX5UJ-24MR/ES, FX5UJ-24MT/ES, FX5UJ-24MT/ESS, FX5UJ-24MR/DS, FX5UJ-24MT/DS, FX5UJ-24MT/DSS, FX5UJ-40MR/ES, FX5UJ-40MT/ES, FX5UJ-40MT/ESS, FX5UJ-40MR/DS, FX5UJ-40MT/DS, FX5UJ-40MT/DSS, FX5UJ-60MR/ES, FX5UJ-60MT/ESS, FX5UJ-60MT/ESS, FX5UJ-60MR/DS, FX5UJ-60MT/DS, and FX5UJ-60MT/DSS
GOT	A generic term for Mitsubishi Electric Graphic Operation Terminal GOT1000 and GOT2000 series
GX Works3	The product name of the software package, SWnDND-GXW3, for the MELSEC programmable controllers (The 'n' represents a version.)
Peripheral device	A generic term for engineering tools and GOTs
RAS	An abbreviation for Reliability, Availability, and Serviceability. This term refers to usability of automated equipment.
Remote module	A generic term for modules that communicate data with the FX5-ASL-M

1 OUTLINE

The FX5-ASL-M type AnyWireASLINK system master module (hereinafter referred to as FX5-ASL-M) is an intelligent function module for building an AnyWireASLINK system with FX5 CPU module.

The FX5-ASL-M is jointly developed and manufactured by Mitsubishi Electric and Anywire Corporation.

The AnyWireASLINK system is a sensor network system.



(1) FX5-ASL-M

- (2) Remote module (ASLINKER)
- (3) Remote module (ASLINKAMP)
- (4) Terminating unit
- (5) Cylinder, switch, or others
- (6) Sensor head
- (7) Link connector

2 SPECIFICATIONS

This chapter describes the FX5-ASL-M specifications.

2.1 General Specifications

The items other than the following are equivalent to those of the CPU module.

For the general specification, refer to the following manual.

MELSEC iQ-F FX5S/FX5UJ/FX5U/FX5UC User's Manual (Hardware)

Items	Specifications	
Dielectric withstand voltage	500 V AC for 1 minute	Between all terminals and ground terminal
Insulation resistance	10 M Ω or higher by 500 V DC insulation resistance tester	

2.2 Power Supply Specifications

The following table lists the power supply specifications.

Items		Specifications
External power supply	Power supply voltage	24 V DC +15%, -10%, ripple voltage 0.5 Vp-p or lower Recommended voltage: 26.4 V DC (24 V DC +10%) Please use a UL Class 2 power supply.
	Current consumption	100 mA
	Transmission cable supply current ^{*1}	MAX 2 A
Internal power supply	Power supply voltage	5 V DC
	Current consumption	200 mA

*1 Refer to the following for information about the relationship among the total length, the wire diameter of transmission cables (DP, DN), and the transmission cable supply current.

On some remote modules with cables, the wire diameter of module-integrated transmission cables (DP, DN) may be smaller than 0.75 mm². However, they can be used without any problem, provided that the wire diameter of transmission cables (DP, DN) meets the following requirements.

Wire diameter of transmission	Transmission cable supply current		
cables (DP, DN)	Total length of 50 m or less	Total length of 50 to 100 m	Total length of 100 to 200 m
1.25 mm²	2 A maximum	1 A maximum	0.5 A maximum
0.75 mm²	1.2 A maximum	0.6 A maximum	0.3 A maximum

2.3 Performance Specifications

The following table lists the performance specifications of the FX5-ASL-M.

Items	Specifications
Transmission clock	27.0 kHz
Maximum transmission distance (total length)	200 m ^{*1}
Transmission system	DC power superimposed total frame cyclic system
Connection type	Bus topology (multidrop system, T-branch system, tree branch system, star topology)
Transmission protocol	Dedicated protocol (AnyWireASLINK)
Error control	Checksum, double-check system
Number of connected I/O points	 FX5UJ CPU module: 216 points maximum^{*2} (input: maximum 192 points, output: maximum 192 points) FX5U/FX5UC CPU module: 448 points maximum^{*2*3} (input: maximum 256 points, output: maximum 256 points)
Number of connected remote modules	128 maximum (varies depending on the current consumption of each remote module)
External interface (power supply part/communication part)	Push-in type 7-piece spring clamp terminal block
RAS function	 Disconnected transmission cable location detection function Transmission cable short detection function Transmission cable voltage drop detection function
Transmission cable (DP, DN)	 UL-listed general-purpose 2-wire cable (VCTF, VCT 1.25 mm², 0.75 mm², temperature rating 70°C or higher) UL-listed general-purpose wire (1.25 mm², 0.75 mm², temperature rating 70°C or higher) Dedicated flat cable (1.25 mm², 0.75 mm², temperature rating 90°C)
Power supply cable (24V, 0V)	 UL-listed general-purpose 2-wire cable (VCTF, VCT 0.75 mm² to 2.0 mm², temperature rating 70°C or higher) UL-listed general-purpose wire (0.75 mm² to 2.0 mm², temperature rating 70°C or higher) Dedicated flat cable (1.25 mm², 0.75 mm², temperature rating 90°C)
Memory	Built-in EEPROM (Number of times of overwrite: 100000 times)
Number of occupied I/O points	8 points
Applicable CPU module	 FX5UJ CPU module (From the first) FX5U CPU module (Ver. 1.050 or later) FX5UC CPU module^{*4} (Ver. 1.050 or later)
Applicable engineering tool	FX5UJ CPU module: GX Works3 (Ver.1.060N or later) FX5U/FX5UC CPU module: GX Works3 (Ver.1.035M or later)
Number of connectable units	1 module ^{*5}

*1 For remote modules with integrated transmission cables (DP, DN), the length of the transmission cables (DP, DN) is included in the total length.

For wiring of 50 m or more with 4 wires (DP, DN, 24V, 0V), insert the noise filter for power supply cables between the power supply and cables. For details, refer to the manual for the ASLINK FILTER (ANF-01) manufactured by Anywire Corporation.

- *2 The number of available remote I/O points per CPU module varies depending on the number of I/O points of the extension devices. For the limit of I/O points, refer to the following manual.
- MELSEC iQ-F FX5S/FX5UJ/FX5U/FX5UC User's Manual (Hardware)
- *4 FX5-CNV-IFC or FX5-C1PS-5V is necessary to connect FX5-ASL-M to the FX5UC CPU module.
- *5 FX5-ASL-M and FX3U-128ASL-M cannot be used together.

2.4 Part Names

This chapter describes the names of each part of the FX5-ASL-M.







No.	Name	Description
[1]	Transmission cable terminal block	A terminal block of the AnyWireASLINK
[2]	Extension cable	Cable for connecting the module when adding the FX5-ASL-M
[3]	SET switch	Switch for automatic detection of the remote module ID (address)
[4]	Direct mounting hole	Screw holes (2-\u00f64.5, mounting screw: M4 screw) for direct installation
[5]	Operation status display LEDs	Indicates the operating status of the module. (
[6]	Extension connector (for next module)	Connector for connecting the extension cable of an extension module.
[7]	Name plate	The product model name, manufacturer's serial number etc. are shown.
[8]	DIN rail mounting groove	The module can be installed on DIN46277 rail (35 mm wide).
[9]	DIN rail mounting hook	Hook for mounting the module on a DIN rail of DIN46277 (35 mm wide).
[10]	Pullout tab	They are used when drawing out an extension cable.

LED display

The following table lists the LED display.

LED display	LED color	Description
POWER	Green	Indicates the operating status. On: Power on Off: Power off or module failure
RUN	Green	Indicates the operating status. On: Normal operation Off: Error
ERROR	Red	Indicates the error status. On: Minor error or major error Flashing: Moderate error or major error Off: Normal operation
LINK	Green	Indicates the link status. Flashing: Normal operation Off: 5 V DC power off or module failure
SET	Green	Indicates the address detection status. On: Automatic address detection in progress Flashing: Writing in the EEPROM Off: Normal operation
ALM	Red	Indicates the warning status. On: DP/DN disconnection, no response from the remote module Flashing (1-second intervals): DP-DN short circuit, 24V-DP short circuit Flashing (0.2-second intervals): A 24 V DC power supply is not being supplied or the voltage is low. Off: Normal operation

3 PROCEDURES BEFORE OPERATION

This chapter describes the procedures before operation.

1. Checking the specifications of the FX5-ASL-M

Check the specifications of the FX5-ASL-M. (SP Page 16 SPECIFICATIONS)

2. Installation of the FX5-ASL-M

Connect the FX5-ASL-M to the CPU module. For details, refer to the following. MELSEC iQ-F FX5S/FX5UJ/FX5U/FX5UC User's Manual (Hardware)

3. Configuring a system

Configure an AnyWireASLINK system and set parameters which are required for start-up.

- Wiring (🖙 Page 45 WIRING)
- Parameter setting (Page 51 PARAMETER SETTINGS)
- Address setting of remote modules (IP Page 54 Remote Module Address Setting)
- Automatic address detection function (Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)

4. Powering on the system

Power on and start the system in the order shown below.

- Turn on the 24 V DC external power supply for the AnyWireASLINK system.
- Turn on the power supply of the programmable controller.

5. Checking operations with the LEDs

Check whether communications are established normally.

When the communications are established normally, the following LED on/off statuses are as follows.

- POWER LED: On
- RUN LED: On
- ERROR LED: Off
- LINK LED: Flashing
- SET LED: Off
- ALM LED: Off

6. Programming

Create a program. For details, refer to the following.

Point P

• If the programmable controller is powered on before the 24 V DC external power supply in the AnyWireASLINK system, a transmission cable voltage drop detection error may occur.

• To power off the system, power off the programmable controller, and turn off the 24 V DC external power supply in the AnyWireASLINK system.

4.1 Function List

The following table lists the function available for the FX5-ASL-M.

AnyWireASLINK transmission

,		
Function	Description	Reference
Bit transmission	Exchanges I/O data of up to 448 points (input max. 256 points, output max. 256 points) between the FX5-ASL-M and a remote module.	Page 23
Double check	A double check is an error control system. In this system, cycle data in AnyWireASLINK transmission is recognized as valid data if the data matches with the data of the last transmission or is ignored as invalid data if the data does not match with the last data. A double check ensures reliability of communication.	Page 24
Remote module parameter read/write	In AnyWireASLINK, parameter information of a remote module and the AnyWireASLINK system in addition to I/O information are sent and received between the FX5-ASL-M and a remote module. Execute this function to check or change parameter information of a remote module.	Page 35

Address setting

Function	Description	Reference
Automatic address detection function	Enables the FX5-ASL-M to detect and store the ID (address) of the connected remote module when the SET switch on the FX5-ASL-M is pressed.	Page 55
Remote address change function	Changes an ID (address) of a remote module using the buffer memory area without an address writer.	Page 25
Same ID used detection function	Checks whether the same ID is used for multiple remote modules through automatic address detection or same address used check. The LEDs of the relevant remote modules are forcibly turned on.	Page 26
Module with no ID setting detection function	Detects remote modules with no ID assigned (default ID) through automatic address detection or same address used check.	Page 28

RAS

Function	Description	Reference
Transmission cable short detection function	Protects the system by detecting the current out of the specifications of the AnyWireASLINK system across DP-DN or 24V-DP and stopping the transmission.	Page 29
Disconnected transmission cable location detection function	Notifies the ID of a remote module that has been separated from the FX5-ASL-M because of disconnection in the transmission cables (DP, DN) between the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module, to locate the disconnection in the transmission cables (DP, DN) from the upper system.	Page 30
Transmission cable voltage drop detection function	Detects a voltage drop in the 24 V DC external power supply, enabling the FX5-ASL-M to detect a failure in the 24 V DC external power supply or a wiring error from the upper system.	Page 31

Others		
Function	Description	Reference
Parameter access error detection function	Allows parameter access errors to be detected.	Page 32
Error status automatic recovery function	Allows for automatic error reset for DP/DN disconnection errors and parameter errors after the error status is cleared.	Page 34
Remote module information acquisition at start-up function	Allows for automatic acquisition of information of remote modules when the CPU module is reset or power off and on the system.	Page 34

4.2 AnyWireASLINK Transmission

The AnyWireASLINK is a high-speed and highly reliable system which releases the work site from complicated and incorrect wiring.

In AnyWireASLINK, the FX5-ASL-M communicates with remote modules using IDs (addresses) of the remote modules. The IDs (addresses) of the remote modules are stored in the buffer memory of the FX5-ASL-M.



(1) CPU module

- (2) FX5-ASL-M
- (3) Input remote module (ASLINKER): Address 0 $\,$
- (4) Output remote module (ASLINKER): Address 0
- (5) Buffer memory
- (6) Sensor switch
- (7) LED

Bit transmission

I/O data can be exchanged between FX5-ASL-M and a remote module.

- FX5UJ CPU module: 216 points maximum (input: maximum 192 points, output: maximum 192 points)
- FX5U/FX5UC CPU module: 448 points maximum^{*1} (input: maximum 256 points, output: maximum 256 points)
- *1 The maximum I/O data points is 384 points when the version of FX5U/FX5UC CPU module is earlier than 1.100.

4.3 Double Verification

A double check is an error control system. In this system, cycle data in AnyWireASLINK transmission is recognized as valid data if the data matches with the data of the last transmission or is ignored as invalid data if the data does not match with the last data. The double verification ensures reliability of communication.

The double verification is classified into a bit double verification and word double verification.

Overview

■Bit double verification

If one bit of data is the same between two successive transmission cycles, the data is valid and I/O data is communicated.



(1) Transmission cycle (last)

(2) Transmission cycle (current)

(3) I/O data

(4) This data is compared with the verification data (one bit) of the last transmission cycle.

■Word double verification

If one word (16 bits) of data is the same between two successive transmission cycles, the data is valid and I/O data is communicated.



(1) Transmission cycle (last)

(2) Transmission cycle (current)

(3) I/O data

(4) The data is compared with the verification data (one word) of the last transmission cycle.

Point P

The bit double verification is suitable for digital I/O type remote modules, which use information in units of bits. The word double verification is suitable for analog I/O type remote modules, which use information in units of words.

Setting method

Set the double verification in "Double verification" of "Basic setting". (SP Page 52 Double verification)

4.4 Remote Address Change Function

With this function, an ID (address) of a remote module can be changed using the buffer memory area without an address writer.



Applicable remote module

For the remote modules that support the remote address change function, contact Anywire Corporation.

Operating procedure

- **1.** Execute automatic address detection to check that no error has occurred in the AnyWireASLINK system. (Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)
- 2. Specify an access method to a remote module.

Store 0002H (address change) in 'Parameter access setting' (Un\G10320).

3. Specify an ID of the remote module to be accessed.

Store the ID to be changed (old ID) in 'Parameter access target module ID specification' (Un\G10321).

ID	Description
0000H to 00FFH	ID of the output remote module
0200H to 02FFH	ID of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module

4. Specify a new ID of the remote module.

Store the new ID in 'Change ID specification' (Un\G10323).

ID	Description
0000H to 00FFH	ID of the output remote module
0200H to 02FFH	ID of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module

If the specified ID has already been used or is out of the allowable specification range, an error occurs.

5. Turn on and off 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8).

At this time, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. When the parameter access is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns on.

6. After changing the IDs of all the target remote modules, execute automatic address detection. (SP Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)

Precautions

- Before executing this function, make sure to execute automatic address detection to check that no error has occurred in the AnyWireASLINK system. (SP Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)
- This function cannot be executed for remote modules separated from the FX5-ASL-M because of disconnection or remote modules having the same ID. Use an address writer to change the IDs of such remote modules.
- This function can be executed if only one remote module having no ID exists within one AnyWireASLINK line. If IDs of
 multiple remote modules are not set, it is recognized as an ID duplication. Thus, the IDs cannot be changed.

4.5 Same ID Used Detection Function

This function checks whether the same ID is used for multiple remote modules through automatic address detection or same address used check. The LEDs of the relevant remote modules are forcibly turned on.



- ID duplications are detected through automatic address detection or same address used check. If the CPU module is reset or the power is turned off after ID duplication detection, the same ID used status cannot be checked until automatic address detection or same address used check is executed again.
- Even if an ID is assigned to multiple modules, a single ID is stored in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112). For example, even when multiple modules have an ID 10, "1" is stored in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and "10" is stored in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112).

How to execute automatic address detection

For details on automatic address detection, refer to the following

Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function

How to execute same address used check

Turn off and on 'Overlap address inspection command' (Un\G27 b2). If 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) turns on and off, it indicates that the same address used check is completed.

The same address used check cannot be executed under any of the following conditions.

- When an error occurs in the AnyWireASLINK system (Example: Short circuit, 24 V DC external power supply voltage drop)
- · Within approximately five seconds after the AnyWireASLINK system is powered on or system is reset
- When automatic address detection is in progress (While 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on)
- When the same address used check is in progress (While 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) is on)
- When the parameter access is in progress (While 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8), 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9), or 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10) is on)
- When any of the following errors has occurred

Error code	Error description	
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error	
ОССЭН	DP/DN short error	
ОССВН	24V/DP short error	
1867H	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure	
3064H		
3065H		
3066H		

How to check the same ID used status

When the AnyWireASLINK system is in the following status, the same ID is used for multiple modules.

- Even in the same ID used status, the AnyWireASLINK bit transmission does not stop.
- 'Remote module alarm signal' (Un\G28 b8) turns on.
- Same ID used error (error code: 0D90H) is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and the duplicate ID is stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257).^{*1}
- The relevant ID is stored in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112).
- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.

How to recover from same ID used status

Check 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112). Then set a unique ID (address) in all the remote modules. (Page 80 Number of the alarm IDs, Page 80 Alarm ID information storage area)

Set IDs (addresses) of remote modules and execute automatic address detection of the FX5-ASL-M. Then, the IDs of the remote modules are stored in the FX5-ASL-M and the error is cleared. (I Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)

Precautions

While an ID (address) is used for multiple remote modules, executing either of the following can eliminate the same ID used error. However, the address is still used for the multiple remote modules.

- · Powering off and on the AnyWireASLINK system
- Turning off and on 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0)

4.6 Module with No ID Setting Detection Function

This function detects remote modules with no ID assigned (default ID) through automatic address detection or same address used check.

Module	Default ID
Input remote module, I/O combined remote module	767
Output remote module	255

Point P

- Modules with no ID set are detected through automatic address detection or same address used check. If the CPU module is reset or the power is turned off after a module with no ID set is detected, the no ID number setting status cannot be checked until automatic address detection or same address used check is executed again.
- Even if no ID is assigned to modules, a single ID is stored in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112). For example, even when multiple modules have an ID 255, "1" is stored in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and "255" is stored in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112).

How to execute automatic address detection

For details on automatic address detection, refer to the following. \square Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function

How to execute same address used check

Turn off and on 'Overlap address inspection command' (Un\G27 b2). If 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) turns on and off, it indicates that the same address used check is completed.

The same address used check cannot be executed under any of the following conditions.

- When an error occurs in the AnyWireASLINK system (Example: Short circuit, 24 V DC external power supply voltage drop)
- · Within approximately five seconds after the AnyWireASLINK system is powered on or system is reset
- When automatic address detection is in progress (While 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on)
- When the same address used check is in progress (While 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) is on)
- When the parameter access is in progress (While 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8), 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9), or 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10) is on)
- When any of the following errors has occurred

Error code	Error description
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error
0CC9H	DP/DN short error
OCCBH	24V/DP short error
1867H	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure
3064H	
3065H	
3066H	

How to check the no ID number setting status

When the AnyWireASLINK system is in the following status, no ID number setting status is detected.

Even in the no ID number setting status, the AnyWireASLINK bit transmission does not stop.

- 'Remote module alarm signal' (Un\G28 b8) turns on.
- No ID setting error (error code: 0D91H) is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and unset ID is stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257).^{*1}
- Unset IDs are stored in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112).
- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.

How to recover from the no ID number setting status

Check 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112). Then set addresses to remote modules. (EP Page 80 Number of the alarm IDs, Page 80 Alarm ID information storage area) Check that "255" is not set as the address of the remote module.

Set IDs (addresses) of remote modules and execute automatic address detection of the FX5-ASL-M. Then, the IDs of the remote modules are stored in the FX5-ASL-M and the error is cleared. () Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)

Precautions

While an ID (address) of a remote module is not set, executing either of the following can eliminate the no ID setting error. However the address of the remote module is still not set.

- · Powering off and on the AnyWireASLINK system
- Turning off and on 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0)

4.7 Transmission Cable Short Detection Function

This function protects the system by detecting the current out of the specifications of the AnyWireASLINK system across DP-DN or 24V-DP and stopping the transmission.

How to check the transmission cable short status

When the AnyWireASLINK system is in the following status, a transmission cable short has occurred.

- The LINK LED turns off and the ALM LED flashes repeatedly at one second intervals.^{*1}
- When any of the transmission cables (DP, DN) is short-circuited, 'DP/DN short error' (Un\G28 b1) turns on.
- When any of the transmission cables (24V, DP) is short-circuited, '24V/DP short error' (Un\G28 b2) turns on.
- A DP/DN short error (error code: 0CC9H) or 24V/DP short error (error code: 0CCBH) is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and 0FFFH is stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257).^{*1}
- · The AnyWireASLINK bit transmission stops.
- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.

How to recover from the transmission cable short status

How to recover from the transmission cable short status is as follows.

1. Eliminate the short circuit in the AnyWireASLINK system.

When the short status is exited, AnyWireASLINK bit transmission resumes automatically.

If the status does not change, the short circuit has not been eliminated. Check it again.

2. Power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

The following status is resulted:

- 'DP/DN short error' (Un\G28 b1) and '24V/DP short error' (Un\G28 b2) turn off.
- The ALM LED turns off.
- The data in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257) are cleared.

4.8 Disconnected Transmission Cable Location Detection Function

This function notifies the ID of a remote module that has been separated from the FX5-ASL-M because of disconnection in the transmission cables (DP, DN) between the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module, to locate the disconnection in the transmission cables (DP, DN) from the upper system.

Point P

- To enable the disconnected transmission cable location detection function, execute automatic address detection when configuring, modifying, or expanding the system. (See Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)
- After a system is configured, the disconnection detection may still work when a remote module is disconnected from the system. Execute automatic address detection after modifying the system.
- Even if disconnection in the transmission cable (DP, DN) is detected, the AnyWireASLINK bit transmission does not stop.

How to check the transmission cable disconnection status

When the AnyWireASLINK system is in the following status, the transmission cable (DP, DN) have been disconnected or a remote module error has occurred.

- The ALM LED turns on.*1
- 'DP/DN disconnection error' (Un\G28 b4) turns on.
- The number of error IDs is stored in 'Number of the error IDs' (Un\G8192).
- The disconnected ID (address) is stored in 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320).
- The bits of 'Error ID information bit area (output)' (Un\G8704 to Un\G8719) and 'Error ID information bit area (input)' (Un\G8736 to Un\G8751) corresponding to the disconnected ID (address) turn on.
- DP/DN disconnection error (error code: 0CCAH) is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and the disconnected ID is stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257).^{*1}
- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.

How to recover from the transmission cable disconnection status

How to recover from the transmission cable disconnection status is as follows.

1. Eliminate the disconnection in the AnyWireASLINK system.

When the disconnection status is exited, AnyWireASLINK bit transmission resumes automatically.

When the remote module has been disconnected from the system, execute automatic address detection. (SP Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function)

2. Power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

The following status is resulted:

- 'DP/DN disconnection error' (Un\G28 b4) turns off.
- The ALM LED turns off.
- The data in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257) are cleared.

Point P

- When the automatic address detection is executed in step 1, the operation in step 2 is not necessary.
- If the error status automatic recovery mode is set in "Error status automatic recovery" of "Basic setting", the error status is automatically cleared after the disconnection status is exited.

4.9 Transmission Cable Voltage Drop Detection Function

This function detects a voltage drop in the 24 V DC external power supply, enabling the FX5-ASL-M to detect a failure in the 24 V DC external power supply or a wiring error from the upper system.

Point P

For the specifications of the 24 V DC external power supply to the FX5-ASL-M, refer to Series Page 16 Power Supply Specifications.

How to check the transmission cable voltage drop status

When the AnyWireASLINK system is in the following status, a voltage drop in the 24 V DC external power supply has been detected.

- The ALM LED flashes at 0.2 second intervals.*1
- 'Transmission cable voltage drop error' (Un\G28 b3) turns on.
- Transmission cable voltage drop error (error code: 0CC8H) is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and 0FFFH is stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257).^{*1}
- The AnyWireASLINK bit transmission stops.
- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.

How to recover from the transmission cable voltage drop status

How to recover from the transmission cable voltage drop status is as follows.

1. Check the voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply and replace the power supply or check the wiring, as necessary. When the transmission cable voltage drop is corrected, AnyWireASLINK bit transmission resumes automatically.

2. Power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

The following status is resulted:

- 'Transmission cable voltage drop error' (Un\G28 b3) turns off.
- The ALM LED turns off.
- The data in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257) are cleared.

4.10 Parameter Access Error Detection Function

This function allows parameter access errors to be detected.

- Remote module hardware error (error code: 0D2CH, 0D2DH)
- Parameter access target module ID error (error code: 0D2EH)
- Parameter value error (error code: 0D2FH)
- Parameter access error (error code: 0D30H)
- Remote module status error (error code: 0D31H)
- Same ID used error (error code: 0D90H)
- No ID setting error (error code: 0D91H)
- New ID error (error code: 0D92H)

How to check the parameter access error status

The following table lists parameter access error statuses.

Error description	Status when an error occurred		
	Status information	Buffer memory	
Remote module hardware error	'Remote module alarm signal' (Un\G28 b8) turns on.	 Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) The error code is stored.*1 Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257) The IDs corresponding to the error codes are stored. Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984)*2 The number of IDs relevant to alarm occurrence is stored. Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112)*2 The IDs relevant to alarm occurrence are stored. 	
Parameter access target module ID error			
Parameter value error			
Parameter access error	'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10) turns on.		
Remote module status error	'Remote module alarm signal' (Un\G28 b8) turns on.		
Same ID used error			
No ID setting error			
New ID error	1		

- *1 If multiple errors occur simultaneously, the latest error is displayed.
- *2 If an error occurs in parameter access, data are stored in 'Number of the error IDs' (Un\G8192) and 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320).

How to recover from the parameter access error status

How to recover from the parameter access error status is as follows.

■Remote module hardware error

Take measures such as those against noise to remove factors causing errors. Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

■Parameter access target module ID error, parameter value error

Remove factors causing errors (for example, parameter access program). Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

■Parameter access error

If any of the following errors has occurred, eliminate the error cause.

- Remote module hardware error (error code: 0D2CH, 0D2DH)
- Remote module status error (error code: 0D31H)
- Same ID used error (error code: 0D90H)

When an error occurs in a parameter access due to a cause other than the above errors, the possible cause is noise. Take measures such as those against noise to remove factors causing errors. Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

Point P

If the error status automatic recovery mode is set in "Error status automatic recovery" of "Basic setting", the error is automatically cleared after recovery from the parameter access error status.

■Remote module status error

Check the status details of the target remote module to remove factors causing errors. Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

The status details of the remote module can be checked with the AnyWireASLINK parameter in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335).^{*1}

*1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.

Same ID used error, no ID setting error

Remove factors causing errors (for example, one ID is assigned to multiple modules or a module has no ID). Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

■New ID error

Check 'Connected module ID information storage area' (Un\G9217 to Un\G9344) and set a new ID. Then power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).

Status after recovery

After recovery from parameter access error status, the following status is resulted:

Error description	Signal status
Remote module hardware error	 'Remote module alarm signal' (Un\G28 b8) turns off.
Parameter access target module ID error	• The data in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) is cleared.
Parameter value error	The data in Latest error iD storage area (Un(G10257) is cleared. The data in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un(G9984) is cleared.
Remote module status error	The data in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112) is cleared.
Same ID used error	
No ID setting error	
New ID error	
Parameter access error	 'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10) turns off.
	 The data in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) is cleared.
	 The data in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257) is cleared.
	 The data in 'Number of the error IDs' (Un\G8192) is cleared.
	 The data in 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320) is cleared.
	The data in 'Error ID information bit area (output)' (Un\G8704 to Un\G8719) and 'Error ID information bit
	area (input)' (Un\G8736 to Un\G8751) are cleared.

4.11 Error Status Automatic Recovery Function

This function allows for automatic error reset for DP/DN disconnection errors and parameter errors after the error status is cleared.

(Usually, if an error has occurred, eliminate the error cause, and power off and on the AnyWireASLINK system or turn on and off 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0).)

Error that can be automatically recovered

The following shows the errors that can be automatically recovered.

Error code	Error description	Status when an error occurred	Status when an error is cleared
0CCAH	DP/DN disconnection error	'DP/DN disconnection error' (Un\G28 b4) turns on. Error ID information is registered in the buffer memory address. ('DP/DN disconnection error' (Un\G28 b4) turns off.^{*1} The error ID information registered in the buffer memory address is cleared. (corresponding ID only)^{*2}
0D30H	Parameter access error	Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10) turns on. Error ID information is registered in the buffer memory address. (Page 32 How to check the parameter access error status)	 'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10) turns off.^{*1} The error ID information registered in the buffer memory address is cleared. (corresponding ID only)^{*2}

*1 The error causes must be eliminated from all the remote modules in which errors have occurred.

*2 If the errors 0CCAH and 0D30H have occurred in one remote module, the causes of both the errors must be eliminated.

Setting method

Set the error status automatic recovery function in "Error status automatic recovery" of "Basic setting". (Page 52 Error status automatic recovery)

4.12 Remote Module Information Acquisition at Startup Function

This function allows for automatic acquisition of information of remote modules when the CPU module is reset or the power is turned off and on.

The remote module information acquisition at start-up function eliminates the needs for reading parameters from remote modules.

For the parameters of the remote module stored, refer to the following.

Page 35 Remote Module Parameter Read/Write

Setting method

Set the remote module information acquisition at start-up function in "Startup operating mode" of "Basic setting". (Page 52 Startup operating mode)

Operation at start-up

When communication of the FX5-ASL-M is normally established after the CPU module is reset or the power is turned off and on, the parameters of all the registered remote modules are read all at once. The read parameters are then stored in the buffer memory.
4.13 Remote Module Parameter Read/Write

In AnyWireASLINK, parameter information of a remote module and the AnyWireASLINK system in addition to I/O information are sent and received between the FX5-ASL-M and a remote module.

Use this function to check or change parameter information of a remote module.

- For details on the parameter information to be communicated, refer to the following.
- 🖙 Page 82 Parameter access setting
- SP Page 82 Parameter access target module ID specification
- Page 83 Parameter storage location memory number
- 🗁 Page 84 Parameter storage area

Parameter reading and writing methods

There are four methods as follows to read or write the parameter information from or to a remote module.

Туре	Description
Automatic update	The current status of all remote modules and the current values of the sensors are read at regular intervals. (Setting values are excluded.)
Parameter access	All the parameter values of the remote modules are read or written individually in accordance with the setting of reading or writing and the target remote module.
Parameter batch read	All the parameter values of all remote modules are read out into the buffer memory of the FX5-ASL-M.
Parameter batch write	Values set in the buffer memory of the FX5-ASL-M are written to all the parameter of all remote modules.

The following shows the readable/writable parameters.

 \bigcirc : Possible, \times : Impossible

Parameter name		Read/write	Parameter read and write methods				
			Automatic	Parameter access		Parameter	Parameter
			update	Read	Write	batch read	batch write
Device parameter ^{*1}		Read/write	×	0	0	0	0
AnyWireASLINK	Module ID	Read/write	×	0	0	0	0
parameter	Status details	Read	0	0	×	0	×
	Sensing level	Read	0	0	×	0	×

*1 The device parameter name differs depending on the remote module to be used.

Point P

Even when the parameter access, parameter batch read, or parameter batch write is executed, the bit transmission speed of AnyWireASLINK is not reduced.

Automatic update

No special operation is required because data are automatically updated. To check the parameter information, refer to the corresponding buffer memory address.

Parameter access

The operating procedure for parameter access is as follows.

■To read parameters

1. Set the access method.

Store 0000H (read) in 'Parameter access setting' (Un\G10320).

2. Set the access target ID.

Store the access target ID in 'Parameter access target module ID specification' (Un\G10321).

ID	Description
0000H to 00FFH	ID of the output remote module
0200H to 02FFH	ID of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module

3. Turn on and off 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8).

At this time, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. When the parameter access is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns on.

4. The read parameters are stored in the following location of each ID.

Device parameter in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335)*1

*1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.

■To write parameters

- **1.** Before writing parameters, read parameters according to the procedure of "To read parameters", or "Parameter batch read".^{*1}
- *1 Since all the parameters of the target remote module are updated at the time of writing parameters, all the parameters, including the parameters of the changed part, must be set correctly. If writing parameters is executed without reading parameters, it may cause malfunction.

2. Set the access method.

Store 0001H (write) in 'Parameter access setting' (Un\G10320).

3. Set the access target ID.

Store the access target ID in 'Parameter access target module ID specification' (Un\G10321).

ID	Description
0000H to 00FFH	ID of the output remote module
0200H to 02FFH	ID of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module

4. Store the parameters to be written in the following location.

Device parameter read/write areas in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335)*1

*1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.

5. Turn on and off 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8).

At this time, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. When the parameter access is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns on.

6. After writing parameters, check that the setting have been saved in the remote module by reading parameters in the remote module according to the procedure of "To read parameters", or "Parameter batch read".

Parameter batch read

The procedure for parameter batch read is as follows.

1. Turn on and off 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9).

At this time, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. When the parameter access is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns on.

2. The read parameters are stored in the following location of each ID.

Device parameter in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335)*1

*1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.

Parameter batch write

The operating procedure for parameter batch write is as follows.

- **1.** Before executing parameter batch write, read parameters of all ID registered remote modules according to the procedure of "Parameter batch read".^{*1}
- *1 Since all the parameters of the target remote module are updated at the time of writing parameters, all the parameters, including the parameters of the changed part, must be set correctly.
- If writing parameters is executed without reading parameters, it may cause malfunction.
- **2.** Store the parameters to be written in the following location.

Device parameter read/write areas in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335)*1

- *1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.
- 3. Turn on and off 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10).

At this time, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. When the parameter access is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns on.

4. After executing parameter batch write, check that the setting have been saved in the remote module by reading parameters in the remote module according to the procedure of "To read parameters", or "Parameter batch read".

Point P

- During the parameter access, parameter batch read, and parameter batch write, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) is off. When 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) is off, the parameter access, parameter batch read, and parameter batch write cannot be executed.
- Upon parameter batch read or parameter batch write, the values stored in 'Parameter access setting' (Un\G10320) and 'Parameter access target module ID specification' (Un\G10321) are ignored.
- The buffer memory areas Un\G10496 to Un\G10751 store the start address of the buffer memory area that stores parameters of output remote modules with the IDs. The 48 words from the buffer memory start address is the parameter information of each ID.
- The buffer memory areas Un\G11008 to Un\G11263 store the start address of the buffer memory area that stores parameters of input remote modules or I/O combined remote modules with the IDs. The 48 words from the buffer memory start address is the parameter information of each ID.

Parameter access timing

The parameter access timing is as follows.

Executed in the program

'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10)

'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0)

Executed by the FX5-ASL-M

 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8),
 ON

 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9),
 OFF

 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10)
 OFF

 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9)
 ON



No.	Description
(1)	Turn off and on any of the signals below with a program to start parameter access. ^{*1}
	'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8)
	'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9)
	'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10)
(2)	The operation in (1) turns off 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9).
(3)	The parameter access is in progress.
(4)	When parameter access (read/write) is completed, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns off and on.
(5)	If parameter access has an error, 'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10) turns off and on and 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) automatically turns off and on. ^{*2}
(6)	Turning off and on 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0) with a program turns on and off 'Parameter access error' (Un\G28 b10).
(7)	Turn on and off the signal that has been turned off and on in the step (1) with a program.

*1 Before the start of parameter access from the FX5-ASL-M to the remote module, apply the access method, access target ID, and parameter data to the buffer memory.

*2 Error codes are stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) and the target IDs are stored in 'Latest error ID storage area' (Un\G10257). (The latest information is overwritten.)

Precautions

■Parameter setting

Parameters cannot be set in the following cases.

- When an error occurs in the AnyWireASLINK system (Example: Short circuit, 24 V DC external power supply voltage drop)
- · Within approximately five seconds after the AnyWireASLINK system is powered on or CPU module is reset
- When automatic address detection is in progress (While 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on)
- When the same address used check is in progress (While 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) is on)
- When the parameter access is in progress (While 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8), 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9), or 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10) is on.)
- · When any of the following errors has occurred

Error code	Error description
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error
ОСС9Н	DP/DN short error
OCCBH	24V/DP short error
1867H	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure
3064H	
3065H	
3066H	

Parameter reading and writing

- Since all the parameters of the target remote module are updated at the time of writing parameters, all the parameters, including the parameters of the changed part, must be set correctly. Make sure to read parameters immediately before writing parameters to store the latest contents of the parameters. After storing the necessary parameter values, write parameters. If writing parameters is executed without reading parameters, it may cause malfunction.
- When parameter read or write is in progress, 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) turns off. Refer to the section describing the parameter access timing, and adjust the access timing. (🖙 Page 38 Parameter access timing)
- When parameter read or write is in progress, do not execute re-access to the parameters and automatic address detection. Doing so can cause a malfunction of the module.

Parameter access, parameter batch read, and parameter batch write

- These operations cannot be performed to a remote module whose ID has not been registered in the FX5-ASL-M.
- Remove a same ID used error or a no ID setting error of the remote module. Then perform the operations.

Others

- · When the automatic address detection is executed, the parameter batch read is executed simultaneously.
- Note that the FX5-ASL-M may communicate with a remote module and output parameters even if no parameters are set.

5 SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

5.1 System Configuration of AnyWireASLINK

An AnyWireASLINK system consists of the FX5-ASL-M, remote modules, and a terminating unit. The remote modules and terminating unit are products manufactured by Anywire Corporation.



(1) FX5-ASL-M

- (2) Remote module (ASLINKER)
- (3) Remote module (ASLINKAMP)
- (4) Terminating unit
- (5) Cylinder, switch, or others
- (6) Sensor head
- (7) Link connector

For the number of connectable remote modules, refer to the following.

Page 17 Performance Specifications

5.2 Power Supply to the AnyWireASLINK System

Method of supplying the power to the remote module

Connect a 24 V DC external power supply to the FX5-ASL-M.

The power consumed in the internal control circuits of all the remote modules and the external load power connected to nonisolation remote modules are supplied collectively from the 24 V DC external power supply connected to the FX5-ASL-M. (SP Page 16 Power Supply Specifications)

Scope of the power supply with transmission cables (DP and DN)

The current consumption of the system must satisfy all the following conditions for an FX5-ASL-M.

Item	Calculation formula	Description	
Condition 1	$\begin{split} I(A) &= (Ihin \times m) + (Iho \times n) + (Izdin \times p) + \\ (Izdo \times q) &\leq The maximum value of \\ transmission cable supply current \end{split}$	Ihin: Current consumption of the non-isolation input remote module/I/O combined remote module Iho: Current consumption of the non-isolation output remote module Izdin: Current consumption of the isolation input remote module/I/O combined remote module Izdo: Current consumption of the isolation output remote module m: Number of connected non-isolation input remote modules/I/O combined remote modules n: Number of connected non-isolation output remote modules p: Number of connected isolation input remote modules/I/O combined remote modules q: Number of connected isolation output remote modules	
Condition 2	$Vm(V)$ - $\Delta V(V) \ge 20 V$	Vm: Supply voltage for the FX5-ASL-M	
Condition 3	$Vm(V) - \Delta V(V) \ge$ The lowest allowable voltage of the connected load	ΔV: Cable-to-cable voltage drop	

Description of condition 1

Constants related to the non-isolation remote module (Ihin, Iho)

In the non-isolation remote module, the current required for the internal control circuit and the connected load is supplied with

transmission cables (DP, DN).

- ■Ihin(A): Current consumption of the non-isolation input remote module/I/O combined remote module
- = Current consumption of the non-isolation input remote module/I/O combined remote module + Current consumption of connected load (three-wire sensor) ×
- Number of points
- ■Iho(A): Current consumption of the non-isolation output remote module
- = Current consumption of the non-isolation output remote module + Current consumption of connected load × Number of points



(4) Power supply generation

(5) Connected load

Point P

- The 24VL and 0VL terminals of a remote module are used to supply the power to the connected load.
- For the current consumption of a non-isolation remote module, refer to the manual for the remote module used.

Constants related to the isolation remote module (Izdin, Izdo)

In the isolation remote module, only the current required for the internal control circuit is supplied with the transmission cables

(DP, DN), whereas that for the connected load is supplied from the power cables (24V, 0V).

Izdin(A): Current consumption of the isolation input remote module/I/O combined remote module

■Izdo(A): Current consumption of the isolation output remote module





• In isolation remote modules, the current consumption of the connected load is not subject to the current restriction condition for the AnyWireASLINK system.

• For the current consumption of isolation remote modules, refer to the manual for the remote module used.

Transmission cable supply current (I(A))

The transmission cable supply current in the AnyWireASLINK system is determined by the following formula. (Number of

connected modules: m, n, p, q)

 $I(A) = (Ihin \times m) + (Iho \times n) + (Izdin \times p) + (Izdo \times q)$

■Maximum transmission cable supply current

For the maximum transmission cable supply current, refer to the following.

Page 16 Power Supply Specifications

Description of conditions 2 and 3

■Vm: Supply voltage for the FX5-ASL-M

- Voltage: 21.6 to 27.6 V DC (24 V DC -10 to +15%), ripple voltage 0.5 Vp-p or lower
- Recommended voltage: 26.4 V DC (24 V DC +10%)

■△V(V): Cable-to-cable voltage drop

Calculation formula	Description
$\Delta V(V)$ = Transmission cable supply current I(A) \times Cable resistance R (\Omega)	■Transmission cable supply current (I(A)) ▷ Page 43 Transmission cable supply current (I(A)) ■Cable resistance R (Ω) = Cable length (m) × Conductor resistance (Ω/m) × 2 • Wire diameter 1.25 mm → Conductor resistance 0.015 Ω/m • Wire diameter 0.75 mm → Conductor resistance 0.025 Ω/m

Calculation example

The example shows how to check whether the total length of 100 m is sufficient to configure a system in the following conditions.

■Condition

Item		Description
Non-isolation remote module (Input ASLINKER)	Number of I/O points	2 points
	Module current consumption	15 mA
	Number of modules	24
Connected load (three-wire sensor)	Three-wire sensor current consumption	13 mA
	Number of sensors	2
	Power supply voltage	24 V DC ±10%
Transmission cable (DP, DN)	Wire diameter	1.25 mm²
Supply voltage for the FX5-ASL-M	Power supply voltage	24 V DC

■Calculation result

Item	Calculation formula	Result
Condition 1	I(A) = (Ihin × m) = I(A) ≤ The maximum transmission cable supply current ⇒ (0.015 + (0.013 × 2)) × 24 = 0.984 A ≤ 1 A	Satisfied
Condition 2	Vm(V) - Δ V(V) ≥ 20 V ⇒ 24 - (0.984 × 100 × 0.015 × 2) = 24 - 2.95 = 21.05 V ≥ 20 V	Satisfied
Condition 3	Vm(V) - Δ V(V) ≥ The lowest allowable voltage of the connected load ⇒ The lowest limit of the allowable voltage range for connected load = 24 - 24 × 0.1 = 21.6V ⇒ 21.05 V < 21.6 V	Not satisfied

The calculation results of the conditions 1) to 3) show that the system cannot be configured.

However, the system can be configured if the power supply for the FX5-ASL-M is changed to 24.55 V DC or higher.

This chapter describes the wiring of the FX5-ASL-M.

6.1 Terminal Block

Type of the terminal block

The following terminal block is used in the FX5-ASL-M.

Name	Model	Contact
Transmission cable terminal block	FMC1,5/7-STF-3,81	PHOENIX CONTACT GmbH & Co. KG

Tightening torque

Tighten terminal block screws within the following tightening torque range.

Screws tightened	Tightening torque range
Terminal block mounting screw	0.2 to 0.3 N·m

To connect the terminal block, a flathead screwdriver having a tipped size of 0.4×2.5 mm is required.

Before removing the transmission cable terminal block, check that the terminal block mounting screws on both sides are completely loosened (removed from the socket).

Pulling with excessive force while the terminal block mounting screws on the both sides are still tightened may damage the device.

Before tightening, check that there are no short circuits due to disconnected or frayed wires. Then tighten the terminal block mounting screws on both sides securely.

Signal name of the terminal block

The following shows the signal names of the terminal block.

Terminal block	Signal na	ame	Description					
	IN	24V 0V	Power supply terminals for driving the transmission circuit of the AnyWireASLINK system and for a remote module. Connect to a 24 V DC external power supply. The maximum passing current of [IN 24V] - [OUT 24V] and [IN 0V] - [OUT 0V] is 2 A.					
	OUT	24V 0V	Terminals for connecting isolation (4-wire) remote modules. If the modules are connected to these terminals, supplying power for each module from the 24 V DC external power supply is not necessary. If OUT 24V and 0V are short-circuited, it may cause fusing of the built-in fuse.					
	DP DN		AnyWireASLINK transmission signal terminals DP: Transmission cable (+), DN: Transmission cable (-) Connect to the DP and DN terminals on the remote module or terminating unit.					
	LG		Connected to the neutral point of the noise filter inserted between the 24V and 0V terminals. Ground the LG terminal with the functional ground terminal (FG terminal) on the programmable controller at a single point.					

6.2 Wiring Method

This section describes the wiring to the transmission cable terminal block of the FX5-ASL-M.

Wiring to the transmission cable terminal block

■Connecting a cable

Insert a cable with a wire ferrule into a wire insertion opening and fully push the cable. Then, pull the cable slightly to check that it is clamped securely.

Precautions

If OUT 24V and 0V are short-circuited, it may cause fusing of the built-in fuse.

■Disconnecting a cable

Hold down the open/close button of a cable to disconnect with a flathead screwdriver. Pull out the cable with the open/close button held down.



6.3 Wiring Product

Applicable wires and cables

Use the following wires or cables connected to the transmission cable terminal block.

Classification	Name	Wire size	Temperature rating		
Transmission cable (DP, DN)	UL-listed general-purpose 2-wire cable (VCTF, VCT)	1.25 mm²	70℃ or higher		
		0.75 mm²			
	UL-listed general-purpose wire	1.25 mm²			
		0.75 mm²			
	Dedicated flat cable 1.25 mm ²				
		0.75 mm²			
Power supply cable (24V, 0V)	UL-listed general-purpose 2-wire cable (VCTF, VCT)	0.75 mm to 2.0 mm	70℃ or higher		
	UL-listed general-purpose wire	0.75 mm to 2.0 mm			
	Dedicated flat cable	1.25 mm²	90℃		
		0.75 mm²			

Wire ferrule

Bare cables can be connected to the transmission cable terminal block; however, for safety reasons, it is recommended to connect wire ferrules.

Use UL-listed wire ferrules and, for processing, use a tool recommended by their manufacturer.

Туре	Model	Application	Contact
Wire ferrule	AI 0,75-10 GY	Processing of a 0.75 mm wire	PHOENIX CONTACT GmbH & Co. KG
	AI 1,5-10	Processing of a 1.25 mm wire	

6.4 Wiring Precautions

• Do not run multiple transmission cables (DP, DN) using a multicore cable.



- The voltage should not fall below the lower limit of the allowable voltage range due to voltage drop caused by the cable. If the voltage falls below the lower limit, malfunctions may occur.
- Do not connect soldered cables directly to the terminals. Doing so may loosen the screws, resulting in a poor contact.
- For wiring of 50 m or more with 4 wires (DP, DN, 24V, 0V), insert the noise filter for power supply cables between the power supply and cables. For details, refer to the manual for the ASLINK FILTER (ANF-01) manufactured by Anywire Corporation.
- In the AnyWireASLINK system, signals and power are supplied to a remote module with two transmission cables: DP and DN. Therefore, use a stranded wire of 1.25 mm² or larger as the main line.
- · General-purpose wire, cabtyre cable and flat cable, etc. can be used.
- Use a crimping tool to connect a wire ferrule to a cable.
- Before inserting a wire ferrule, check the shapes of the wire insertion opening and wire ferrule. Then, insert the terminal in the correct orientation. A wire ferrule wider than the wire insertion opening may damage the terminal block. (
- Signal names are not printed on the transmission cable terminal block. To avoid damage of the device by incorrect wiring, wire cables to the terminal block attached to the FX5-ASL-M.
- Do not insert multiple wire ferrules into one wire insertion opening. Doing so may cause damage on the terminal block or cable, or malfunction.
- If OUT 24V and 0V are short-circuited, it may cause fusing of the built-in fuse.

6.5 Power Supply/grounding Wiring

Power supply/grounding wiring



Grounding

Perform the following.

- Perform class D grounding. (Grounding resistance: 100 Ω or less)
- · Ground the PLC independently if possible.
- If the PLC cannot be grounded independently, perform the "Shared grounding" shown below.



• Bring the grounding point close to the PLC as much as possible so that the ground cable can be shortened.

6.6 Connecting Remote Module or Terminating Unit

Connection type

- The maximum transmission distance in an AnyWireASLINK stand-alone system is 200 m, which is the overall cable distance including the main line and branch line. (It varies depending on the wire diameter of the transmission cables (DP, DN) or the transmission cable supply current.)
- AnyWireASLINK systems support tree branch connection, T-branch connection, multidrop connection, and star topology.
- · Up to 128 remote modules can be connected.



(2) T-branch connection

Point P

The total length of the transmission distance for the AnyWireASLINK system can be calculated from A + B + C.

Note that the total length should not exceed the maximum transmission distance or the total length set for the system to branch lines.

Terminating unit

To ensure more stable transmission quality, connect a terminating unit to the end of a transmission cable (DP, DN).

■Terminating unit connection

Connect at least one terminating unit for one AnyWireASLINK line. Connect it at the farthest end from the FX5-ASL-M.

■Branch of transmission cables (DP, DN)

Connect one terminating unit at the end of a branch line that exceeds 40m.



(1) Main line(2) 40 m or longer branch line

7 PARAMETER SETTINGS

This chapter describes the parameter setting required for the FX5-ASL-M.

7.1 Parameter Setting Procedure

- **1.** Add the FX5-ASL-M to GX Works3.
- ∑ [Navigation window] ⇔ [Parameter] ⇔ [Module Information] ⇔ Right click ⇔ [Add New Module]
- **2.** The parameter setting includes a basic setting and refresh setting. Select the settings in the tree and set the items in the following window.
- [™] [Navigation window] ⇒ [Parameter] ⇒ [Module Information] ⇒ [FX5-ASL-M] ⇒ [Module Parameter]
- **3.** Write the setting to the CPU module with GX Works3.
- [Online] ⇒ [Write to PLC]
- 4. Reset the CPU module or power off and on the system to apply the setting.

7.2 Basic Setting

Set the number of transmission points of the FX5-ASL-M and others.

1[U1]:FX5-ASL-M Module Parameter		<u> </u>
Setting Item List	Setting Item	
Input the Setting Item to Search		
	Item	Setting Value
Basic setting Basic setting Transmission points Gastrap operating mode Double verification Double verification Barror status automatic recovery Barror status automatic recovery	Transmission points Transmission points setting(input) Transmission points setting(output) Startup operating mode Startup operating mode setting	1 128 input points 80 output points Without remote module information acquisition
	Double verification Double verification setting Error status automatic recovery Error status automatic recovery mode setting	All points.double verification of bit No error status automatic recovery
tem List Find Result	Explanation Check Restore the Default:	Settings

Transmission points

Set the number of transmission points of AnyWireASLINK.

Item	Description	Setting range
Transmission points setting (IN)	Set the number of input transmission points.	0 input points
	One transmission cycle time is determined by setting the number	8 input points
	of transmission points. (🖙 Page 87 Transmission cycle time)	16 input points
		24 input points
		32 input points
		48 input points
		64 input points
		• 80 input points
		96 input points
		128 input points
		160 input points
		192 input points
		224 input points
		256 input points
		(Default: 128 input points)
Transmission points setting (OUT)	Set the number of output transmission points.	0 output points
	One transmission cycle time is determined by setting the number	8 output points
	of transmission points. (🖙 Page 87 Transmission cycle time)	16 output points
		24 output points
		32 output points
		48 output points
		64 output points
		80 output points
		96 output points
		128 output points
		160 output points
		192 output points
		224 output points
		256 output points
		(Default: 80 output points)

Startup operating mode

Set whether to read the parameters of remote modules at start-up of the FX5-ASL-M.

Item	Description	Setting range
Startup operating mode setting	Set the operation mode at start-up. (🖙 Page 34 Remote Module Information Acquisition at Start-up Function)	 Without remote module information acquisition Get remote module information acquisition (Default: Without remote module information acquisition)

Double verification

Set the double verification of the FX5-ASL-M.

Item	Description	Setting range
Double verification mode setting	Set the double verification mode. (🖙 Page 24 Double Verification)	 All points, double verification of bit Double verification of word (16 bit), until 1st word^{*1} All points, double verification of word (16 bit) (Default: All points, double verification of bit)

*1 The word double verification be selected from until 1st word up to until 15th word.

Error status automatic recovery

Set whether to automatically recover the FX5-ASL-M from the error status.

Item	Description	Setting range
Error status automatic recovery mode setting	Set the error status automatic recovery mode. (The Page 34 Error Status Automatic Recovery Function)	 No error status automatic recovery Error status automatic recovery
		(Default: No error status automatic recovery)

7.3 Refresh Setting

Setting method

Set buffer memory areas of the FX5-ASL-M to refresh.

This refresh setting eliminates the needs for reading or writing with a program.

1. Start a module parameter.

[Navigation window] ⇔ [Parameter] ⇔ [Module Information] ⇔ [FX5-ASL-M] ⇔ [Module Parameter] ⇔ [Refresh Setting]

1[U1]:FX5-ASL-M Module Parameter		
Setting Item List	Setting Item	
Input the Setting Item to Search	Target Device	Number of transfers to intelli Number of transfers to CPU
	Item	Setting Value
Besic setting Besic setting Befresh settine Befresh settine Befresh Tim Dinformation Connected modules Dinformation Connected module Dinformation Alarm Dinformation Befresh Timing Refresh Timing Refresh Timing (J/O)	► VO data ■ TO Network Module ■ Output 0-15 ■ Output 18-31 ■ Output 82-47 ■ Output 84-63 ■ Output 80-95 ■ Output 96-111 ■ Output 128-143 ■ Output 18-159 ■ Output 160-175	
	Explanation	
		▲ ▼
Item List Find Result	Check Restore the Default Settings]

2. Click "Target" and set a refresh target.

Double-click the item to set and enter a refresh target device.

Point P

If refreshing is enabled, the buffer memory areas are overwritten with the values of the refresh targets. To change the values of the buffer memory areas to be refreshed, create a program that modifies device values of the refresh targets.

7.4 Remote Module Address Setting

Setting a start number of the address assigned for data communication is required for remote modules.

An address can be written to a remote module or the address assigned to a remote module can be read through infrared communications using an address writer (manufactured by Anywire Corporation).

For details, refer to the manual of the address writer.

Image of address read/write



(1) Address setting port(2) Light projecting/receiving part

Address setting example

When 0 is set for the 2-point input remote module address, and 0 and 2 for the 2-point output remote module address, bits are occupied as follows.

Buffer memory address of the input remote module

Buffer memory address	Bit No	Bit No.														
	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G0	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0

• Areas occupied by address 0: Un\G0.0, Un\G0.1

Buffer memory address of the output remote module

Buffer memory address	Bit No.															
	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G4096	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0

• Areas occupied by address 0: Un\G4096.0, Un\G4096.1

• Areas occupied by address 2: Un\G4096.2, Un\G4096.3

Precautions

• A remote module address is not deleted even when the power supply of a programmable controller or a 24 V DC external power supply is turned off. The address is retained until a new address is set when a system is configured.

• In the address setting, ensure that the address occupied by the remote module does not exceed the number of transmission points set in the FX5-ASL-M. For the operation mode setting of the FX5-ASL-M, refer to the following.

Page 52 Transmission points

• In the remote module, a value between 0 and 254 can be written. (This value is not an ID.) Note that 255 cannot be set. Doing so will cause a No ID setting error.

Model	Address	ID			
Output remote module	0 to 254	0 to 254 (0000H to 00FEH)			
Input remote module or I/O combined remote module	0 to 254	512 to 766 (0200H to 02FEH)			

7.5 Automatic Address Detection Function

Automatic address detection refers to a function that stores the IDs (addresses) of the connected remote modules in the EEPROM of the FX5-ASL-M.

Pressing the SET switch on the FX5-ASL-M enables this function and enables the FX5-ASL-M to detect and store IDs (addresses) of connected remote modules.

The ID (address) information stored in the EEPROM is held even when the power is turned off. However, information about unset IDs, the same IDs, and the parameter information of each remote module are not held.

Whenever starting the system or changing the system configuration, set the correct addresses to all the remote modules and execute the automatic address detection.

Executing the automatic address detection

To execute the automatic address detection, use the SET switch or 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1).

Using the SET switch

- 1. Check that all of the remote modules are operating normally.
- 2. Keep pressing the SET switch on the FX5-ASL-M until the SET LED turns on.

At this time, 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) turns on.

- **3.** When the SET LED flashes for a while and turns off, the ID (address) has been stored.
- **4.** When 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) turns off, the automatic address detection is completed.

Using 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1)

- 1. Check that all of the remote modules are operating normally.
- 2. Turn on and off 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1).

At this time, 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) turns on.

- **3.** When the SET LED flashes for a while and turns off, the ID (address) has been stored.
- 4. When 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) turns off, the automatic address detection is completed.

Precautions

Situations in which automatic address detection cannot be executed

Automatic address detection cannot be executed in the following cases.

- When an error occurs in the AnyWireASLINK system (Example: Short circuit, 24 V DC external power supply voltage drop)
- Within approximately five seconds after the AnyWireASLINK system is powered on or CPU module reset recovery
- When automatic address detection is in progress (While 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on)
- When the same address used check is in progress (While 'Overlap address inspection flag' (Un\G28 b12) is on)
- When the parameter access is in progress (While 'Parameter access request command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b8), 'Parameter batch read command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b9), or 'Parameter batch write command for the remote module' (Un\G27 b10) is on)
- · When any of the following errors has occurred

Error code	Error description
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error
ОССЭН	DP/DN short error
OCCBH	24V/DP short error
1867H	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure
3064H	
3065H	
3066H	

Situations in which automatic address detection is required

Execute automatic address detection in the following cases.

- · When starting the system operation (when all of the remote modules are connected and operating normally)
- When adding a remote module after starting the system operation
- · When removing a remote module after starting the system operation
- · When changing the address of a remote module after starting the system operation

Check after execution of automatic address detection

After executing automatic address detection, check that there is no inconsistency between the actual system configuration and the IDs registered in the FX5-ASL-M, referring to the value stored in 'Number of the IDs of the connected modules' (Un\G9216) and values stored in 'Connected module ID information storage area' (Un\G9217 to Un\G9344).

Executing automatic address detection again

Use an address writer to set the ID (address) in a remote module that has the same ID as other remote modules or where an ID is not set. Then execute automatic address detection again.

When non-processing is executed even after automatic address detection is executed

Do not execute automatic address detection in any of the following cases. Automatic address detection is not processed if executed.

• When 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) is off

• When 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on

Create an interlock program to ensure proper execution of automatic address detection.

For the interlock program of automatic address detection, refer to the following.

Page 59 Interlock program of automatic address detection

Automatic address detection execution timing

The following shows automatic address detection execution timing.



*1 After turning on 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1), check that 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on or check the SET LED status. Then, turn off 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1) with a program.

7.6 Automatic Reading of the System Configuration

Man-hours for the parameter setting can be reduced by automatically reading the information of the remote modules connected in the AnyWireASLINK system.

(Navigation window] ⇒ [Parameter] ⇒ [Module Information] ⇒ [FX5-ASL-M] ⇒ [AnyWireASLINK Configuration]

L A	nyWir€	ASLI	NK Configu	uration (N	Mounting	Position N	o.: 1[U1])			
i Ar	AnyWireASLINK Configuration Edit View Close with Discarding the Setting Close with Saving the Setting									
			Detect Now	1						
	Transmission Points (output increase and inc									
				12000	its .	<u> </u>			# of Occur	nied I/O Pts
		No.	I/O Type	Address		Model Nar	ne	Туре	Input	Output
					FX5-ASL-	м		AnyWireASLINK Master Module		
		1	Output	0	B280PB-0	02U-C1220		ASLINKER-Output Module-non-Isolated(Sink Type)	0	2
		2	Output	2	B281PB-0	02U-CC20		ASLINKER-Output Module-non-Isolated(Sink Type)	0	2
		3	Input	0	B280SB-0	02US-C1220		ASLINKER-Input Module-non-Isolated (Source Type)	2	0
		5	Input	20	B2815B-0	020-01220		ASLINKER-Input Module-non-Isolated (Sink Type)	2	0
	_	-	input	20	020100				-	Ŭ
			Output:	0 Out	put:2	Input:0	Input:2	Input:20		
		Ц.,								
FX5-	-ASL-M		' 📩	ľ						
Ma	aster Mr	ndule								
AI	Conne	cted C		7				$\overline{\mathbf{n}}$		
04	110.0			1	1			n		
			B280PB- U-C122	02 B281 0 U-0	PB-02 CC20	B280SB-02 US-C1220	B280SB-02 U-C1220	B281SB-02 U-CC20		
			•							Þ.
Ou	tput									×

For the "AnyWireASLINK Configuration" window, refer to the following.

8 PROGRAMMING

This chapter describes programming and start-up examples of the FX5-ASL-M.

8.1 Precautions on Programming

This section describes precautions on programming on the FX5-ASL-M.

Interlock program of automatic address detection

The interlock program described here prevents 'Automatic address detection command' (Un\G27 b1) from being turned on during a parameter access^{*1} or during automatic address detection^{*1}, allowing proper automatic address detection. The following shows an interlock program in which the start module number of the FX5-ASL-M is assigned to 0001H. *1 Indicates that 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) is off or 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) is on.

Ex.

Interlock example

Classification	Label name			Description		Device			
Module label	FX5ASLM_1.bModuleREADY_[)		Module READY		U1\G28 b0			
	FX5ASLM_1.bDP_DNShortErro	r_D		DP/DN short error		U1\G28 b1			
	FX5ASLM_1.b24V_DPShortError_D 24V/DP short error U								
	FX5ASLM_1.bTransmissionCableVoltageDdropError_D Transmission cable voltage drop error U								
	FX5ASLM_1.bPalameterAccess	CompletionFlag_D		Parameter access complet	U1\G28 b9				
	FX5ASLM_1.bAutomaticAddres	sDetectionFlag_D		Automatic address detection	U1\G28 b11				
	FX5ASLM_1.bOverlapAddressl	nspectionFlag_D		Overlap address inspection	ı flag	U1\G28 b12			
	FX5ASLM_1.bAutomaticAdrress	DetectionCommand_D	Automatic address detection	U1\G27 b1					
Label to be defined	el to be defined Define global labels as shown below:								
	Label Name Data Type Class					Label)			
1 InterlockStart BitVAR_GLOBALM0									

(0)	InterlockStart M0	FX5ASLM_1. bModuleREA DY_D U1¥G28.0	FX5ASLM_1. bDP_DNShor tError_D U1¥G28.1	FX5ASLM_1. b24V_DPSho rtError_D U1¥G28.2	FX5ASLM_1.b TransmissionC ableVoltageDd ropError_D U1¥G28.3	FX5ASLM_1.b PalameterAcc essCompletio nFlag_D U1¥G28.9	FX5ASLM_1.b AutomaticAd dressDetectio nFlag_D U1¥G28.B	FX5ASLM_1.b OverlapAddre ssInspection Flag_D U1¥G28.C	SET	FX5ASLM_1.bAutomatic AdrressDetectionComm and_D U1¥G27.1
(26)	InterlockStart M0								RST	FX5ASLM_1.bAutomatic AdrressDetectionComm and_D U1¥G27.1
(31)										(END)

8.2 Communication of FX5-ASL-M with Remote Module

The input signals of the input ASLINKER, stored in 'Input information area' (Un\G0 to Un\G15) of the FX5-ASL-M, are batch-transferred to the device data of the CPU module.

Moreover, the device data of the CPU module is batch-transferred to 'Output information area' (Un\G4096 to Un\G4111) of the FX5-ASL-M, and the output signals are transmitted to the output ASLINKER.

System configuration example

System configuration

The following system configuration is used to explain communication between the FX5-ASL-M and remote modules.

- CPU module: FX5U CPU module
- AnyWireASLINK system master module: FX5-ASL-M (Module number: 1H)



Link connector
 Terminating unit
 2-point output ASLINKER
 2-point input ASLINKER
 5 LED
 Sensor switch

Correlations between devices

The following shows the correlations between devices.



- (1) CPU module
- (2) FX5-ASL-M
- (3) Input ASLINKER: Address 0
- (4) Output ASLINKER: Address 0
- (5) Buffer memory
- (6) Sensor switch (7) LED

FX5-ASL-M setting

Connect GX Works3 to the CPU module and set parameters.

- **1.** Set the CPU module as follows.
- ‴ [Project] ⇔ [New]

New	
Series	FX5CPU 🔻
Туре	₩ FX5U ▼
Mode	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Program Language	强 Ladder 🔹 👻
	OK Cancel

2. Click the [OK] button to add the module labels of the CPU module.

MELSOF	T GX Works3	
i	Add a module. [Module Name] FX5UCPU [Mounting Position No.] -	
Mod	lule Setting	Setting Change
Mo Sa	dule Label:Use mple Comment:Use	*
		~
Do	Not Show this Dialog Again	ОК

3. Set the FX5-ASL-M as follows.

∑ [Navigation window] ⇔ [Parameter] ⇔ [Module Information] ⇔ Right-click ⇔ [Add New Module]

A	dd	New Module		×					
Г	М	Iodule Selection							
	М	Iodule Type	🛃 Network Module	-					
	Μ	lodel Name	FX5-ASL-M	-					
	Ty	ype							
	A	dvanced Settings							
		Mounting Position							
		Mounting Position No.	1	-					
	Intelligent Module No.		01 H						
		Serial Communication ch	-						
		Number of Input Points	-						
		Number of Output Points	-						
M	Module Selection								
S	Select the module or the adapter to be added.								
			OK Cance						

8

4. Click the [OK] button to add the module labels of the FX5-ASL-M.

MELSOFT GX Works3	
Add a module. [Module Name] FX5-/ [Mounting Position No	ASL-M .] 1[U1]
Module Setting	Setting Change
Module Label:Use Sample Comment:Use	*
	-
Do Not Show this Dialog Again	ОК

5. Set the items in "Basic setting" as follows.

 $\texttt{T} Invigation window] \Rightarrow [Parameter] \Rightarrow [Module Information] \Rightarrow [FX5-ASL-M] \Rightarrow [Module Parameter] \Rightarrow [Basic Settings]$

Item	Setting Value
Transmission points	
Transmission points setting(input)	128 input points
Transmission points setting(output)	80 output points
Startup operating mode	
Startup operating mode setting	Without remote module information acquisition
Double verification	
Double verification setting	All points, double verification of bit
Error status automatic recovery	
Error status automatic recovery mode setting	No error status automatic recovery

6. Write the set parameters into the CPU module, and reset the CPU module or power off and on the system.

∑ [Online] ⇒ [Write to PLC]

Point P

In this example, default values were used for parameters that are not shown above.

Settings of the remote module

Write addresses to remote modules to register the FX5-ASL-M.

Address setting

Write addresses to remote modules with an address writer.

- Output ASLINKER: Address 0 (ID: 0000H)
- Input ASLINKER: Address 0 (ID: 0200H)

Automatic address detection

Keep pressing the SET switch on the FX5-ASL-M until the SET LED turns on.

When the SET LED flashes and then turns off, it indicates that the registration of IDs (addresses) has been completed.

Checking the system status

Check whether the FX5-ASL-M can communicate with the remote modules normally.

The following LED statuses indicate that the communication is established normally.

• LED of the FX5-ASL-M

LED	Status
POWER	On
RUN	On
ERROR	Off
LINK	Flashing
SET	Off
ALM	Off

• LED of the ASLINKER

LED	Status
LINK	Flashing
Other than the LINK LED	Off

Program example

	<u> </u>											
Cla	ssification	Label na	ime			Descri	ptio	n			Device	
Мос	lule label	FX5ASLN	I_1.bModuleRE	ADY_D		Module	REA	.DY	U1\G28 b0			
		FX5ASLM	FX5ASLM_1.bDP_DNShortError_D FX5ASLM_1.b24V_DPShortError_D					error			U1\G28 b1	
		FX5ASLM						t error			U1\G28 b2	
		FX5ASLM	I_1.bTransmissi	ionCableVoltageDd	ropError_D	Transmi	issio	n cable vol	tage dro	p error	U1\G28 b3	
		FX5ASLM	I_1.bDP_DNDis	connectionError_D		DP/DN	disco	onnection e	error		U1\G28 b4	
		FX5ASLM	I_1.uInputInforn	nationArea0_15_D		Input inf	orma	ation area			U1\G0	
		FX5ASLM	I_1.uOutputInfo	rmationArea0_15_I	C	Output i	nforr	nation area	a		U1\G4096	
Lab	el to be defined	Define glo	bal labels as sh	nown below:								
			Label Name		Data Type				Class	Assig	n (Device/Label)	
		1 Time	rContact	Timer				VAR_GLOBAL		▼ T0		1
		2 Prog 3 Input	ramotart Area	Word [Unsigned]/	Bit String [16-bit]			VAR_GLOBAL		▼ MI ▼ K4M1000		4
		4 Outp	utArea	Word [Unsigned]/	Bit String [16-bit]			VAR_GLOBAL		▼ K4M2000		1
(0)	FX5ASLM_1.bModuleR EADY_D	FX5ASLM_1.bDP _DNShortError_D	FX5ASLM_1.b24V _DPShortError_D	FX5ASLM_1.bTransmis sionCableVoltageDdro pErrorD_2	FX5ASLM_1.bDP _DNDisconnectio D					OUT	TimerContact	K10
,					01#G28.4					-	то	
(20)	TimerContact										SET	Program Start
(20)											-	M1
	EX5ASLM 1 HDP DNS											
(24)	hortError_D										RST	Program Start
124/		[-	M1
	ShortError_D U1¥G28.2											
	1											
	FX5ASLM_1.bTransmi ssionCableVoltageDdr opError_D U1¥G28.3											
	FX5ASLM 1.6DP DND											
	isconnectionError_D U1¥G28.4											
	ProgramStart									FX5ASLM 1.uine	InputArea	K16
(38)	M1								BMOV	utInformationAre a0_15_D U1¥G0	K4M1000	
									BMOV	OutputArea K4M2000	FX5ASLM_1.uOut putInformationAre a0_15_D U1¥G4096	K16

(38)

(56)

When 'ProgramStart' (M1) is turned on, the values of 'Input information area' (U1\G0) are transferred to 'Input ASLINKER data storage area' (K4M1000).

The values of 'OutputArea' (K4M2000) are transferred to 'Output information area' (U1\G4096).

Point P

After 'Module READY' (U1\G28 b0) turns on, wait at least one second and start the program.

9 TROUBLESHOOTING

This chapter describes troubleshooting of the FX5-ASL-M.

9.1 Checking with LED

This section describes troubleshooting using LED.

When the POWER LED turns off

When the POWER LED turns off after powering on the FX5-ASL-M, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the FX5-ASL-M mounted correctly?	Securely mount the FX5-ASL-M on the CPU module.

When the RUN LED turns off

When the RUN LED turns off after powering on the FX5-ASL-M, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the FX5-ASL-M mounted correctly?	Securely mount the FX5-ASL-M on the CPU module.

When the ERROR LED turns on

When the ERROR LED turns on, check the following.

Check item	Action
Does a programmable controller error occur in the GX Works3?	Confirm the details of the 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) with
	the GX Works3 buffer memory monitor, and process accordingly.

When the LINK LED turns on or off

When the LINK LED turns on or off, check the following.

Check item	Action
Does a programmable controller error occur in the GX Works3?	Confirm the details of the 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256) with
	the GX Works3 buffer memory monitor, and process accordingly.

When the ALM LED is flashing at 0.2-second intervals

When the ALM LED is flashing at 0.2-second intervals, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the power supply voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply within the rated value?	Adjust the power supply voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply within the rated value (21.6 to 27.6 V DC). (The recommended voltage is 26.4 V DC.)
Is any power cable short-circuited?	 Check that the power cables (24V, 0V) are not disconnected or short-circuited. When crimping the link connector, check that the pin layout is correct.
Is the terminal block properly wired?	 Check that the 24 V DC external power supply is properly connected to the terminal blocks of the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module. Check that there is no short circuit or incorrect wiring and screws are tightened sufficiently.

When the ALM LED is flashing at 1 second intervals

When the ALM LED is flashing at 1 second intervals, check the following.

	-
Check item	Action
Is any transmission cable (between DP and DN, between 24V and DP, or between 0V and DP) short-circuited?	 Check that the transmission cables (between DP and DN, between 24V and DP, or between 0V and DP) are not short-circuited. When crimping the link connector, check that the pin layout is correct.
Is the terminal block properly wired?	Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) are not in contact with each other and that there is no incorrect wiring in the terminal block wiring of the FX5- ASL-M and the remote module.
Is the current consumption of the AnyWireASLINK system within the specified range?	Correct the cables (wire diameter, total length) and modules (type, the number of connected modules) so that the current consumption of all the remote modules does not exceed the transmission cable supply current of the FX5-ASL-M. (SP Page 16 Power Supply Specifications)

When the ALM LED is on

When the ALM LED is on, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is any transmission cable (DP, DN) disconnected?	 Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) are free from disconnection. Check that the cables are crimped with proper pin layout using link connectors appropriate to the wire diameter.
Is the terminal block properly wired?	 Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) and power cables (24V, 0V) are properly connected to the terminal block of the FX5-ASL-M. Check that there is no incorrect wiring and that screws are tightened sufficiently.
Has the automatic address detection been executed?	When creating a new system, adding or removing a remote module, or changing the address of the remote module, execute the automatic address detection. (IPP Page 55 Automatic Address Detection Function) After executing the automatic address detection function, check that the number of remote modules and the address are consistent with those of the actual system.
Does the remote module exist?	When the LINK LED of the remote module does not flash, check that there is no disconnection, short circuit, incorrect wiring, or poor contact in the transmission cables (DP, DN) around the module.

When the SET LED is flashing and does not turn off

When the SET LED is flashing and does not turn off, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is 'Parameter access completion flag' (Un\G28 b9) off or is 'Automatic address detection flag' (Un\G28 b11) on?	 Reset the CPU module or power off and on the system. Check that automatic address detection is not executed while parameter access is in progress.

9.2 Checking Module Status

Checking with the buffer memory

The following shows the check method with the buffer memory.

Check method

[Online] ⇒ [Monitor] ⇒ [Device/Buffer Memory Batch Monitor]

1 [Device/Buffer Memory Batch Monitor] Monitoring																										
🔘 Device Name															-					Detailed C	ondi	tions	8	Mo	onitoring	
Buffer Memor	ry		Inte Mo	ellie dul	gen e N	t lo.(U)	1						•	•	(ŀ	łE>	0	Address 10256	i	•	DEC	•	Stop	Monitoring	
Device Name	F	Е	D	С	в	A	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	3	2	1	0		Current Value				String			
U1 ¥G1 0256	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	1		0	0	0	Г		28872	⊼₽				1	
U1 ¥G1 0257	0	0	0	0	1	1	1	1	1		1	1	1		1	1	1			4095	□.					
U1 ¥G1 0258	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0			0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0259	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0260	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0261	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0262	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0263	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0264	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0265	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0266	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0267	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0268	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0	1		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0269	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0270	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0271	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0272	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0273	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0274	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0275	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0276	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0					1	
U1 ¥G1 0277	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0278	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0			0						
U1 ¥G1 0279	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0280	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ז	0	0	0			0						
U1 ¥G1 0281	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	T		0						
U1 ¥G1 0282	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0			0						
U1 ¥G1 0283	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0			0						-

Check item

For details on the buffer memory, refer to the following.

Page 76 Buffer Memory

Check of the error details

The error code of the FX5-ASL-M is stored in 'Latest error code storage area' (Un\G10256).

Check of the error ID area

The number of error IDs is stored in 'Number of the error IDs' (Un\G8192) and the ID information is stored in 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320).

Check of the alarm signal area

The number of remote modules having an error is stored in 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and the ID information is stored in 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112).

Check of the error details of the remote module

The details of errors in the remote module are stored in the status details in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335).*1

*1 Buffer memory addresses when one remote module is connected. For details, refer to the following.

9.3 Troubleshooting by Symptom

This section describes troubleshooting method by symptom. If an error has occurred in the FX5-ASL-M, identify the error cause with GX Works3. (I Page 67 Checking Module Status)

AnyWireASLINK transmission is not available

When AnyWireASLINK transmission is not available, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the LINK LED of the FX5-ASL-M on or off?	Perform the troubleshooting for when the LINK LED is on or off. (\square Page 65 When the LINK LED turns on or off)
Are the number of transmission points of the FX5-ASL-M and the address setting of the remote module correct?	 Check that the address of the remote module is within the number of transmission points of the FX5-ASL-M. Check that the ID of the remote module is not the same as the IDs of other remote modules.
Does the total length of the transmission cables (DP, DN) exceed 200 m?	When the total length exceeds 200 m, adjust the total length within 200 m.
Do the wires or cables used satisfy standards?	When they do not satisfy the standards, change the wires or cables with the ones that satisfy the standards.

When communication is unstable

When communications are unstable, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the ambient temperature for the module within the specified range?	Keep the ambient temperature within the specified range by taking action such as removing heat source.
Is there any noise affecting the system?	Check the wiring condition.
Is the terminating unit connected properly?	Pay attention to the polarities of the terminating unit and connect it properly.
Does the total length of the transmission cables (DP, DN) exceed the specified range?	Adjust the total length of the AnyWireASLINK system within the specified range.
Do the transmission cables (DP, DN) satisfy the specifications?	 Use transmission cables (DP, DN) that satisfy the specifications such as the type and wire diameter, and tightening torque to the terminal block. Do not run multiple transmission cables (DP, DN) using a multicore cable.
Does the power supply voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply satisfy the specifications?	Adjust the power supply voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply within the rated value (21.6 to 27.6 V DC). (The recommended voltage is 26.4 V DC.)
Are two or more FX5-ASL-M modules connected within one AnyWireASLINK line?	Connect only one FX5-ASL-M module within one AnyWireASLINK line.
Are there AnyWireASLINK system master modules of different series connected within one AnyWireASLINK line?	Connect only one AnyWireASLINK system master module within one AnyWireASLINK line.

When data of the remote module cannot be checked

When I/O data and parameter data of the remote module cannot be checked, check the following.

Check item	Action
Is the I/O information of the remote module stored in the following buffer memory addresses in the program? • 'Input information area' (Un\G0 to Un\G15) • 'Output information area' (Un\G4096 to Un\G4111)	Check that information regarding the remote module has been properly assigned and that the instructions written in the program are free from mistakes.
Are the I/O LEDs of the remote module normal?	Check the I/O LED status of the remote module and check that there is no disconnection, short circuit, or poor contact in the wiring on the load side.
Are two or more FX5-ASL-M modules connected within one AnyWireASLINK line?	Connect only one FX5-ASL-M module within one AnyWireASLINK line.

9.4 List of Error Codes

This section describes errors that occur in processing for data communication between the FX5-ASL-M and remote modules and in processing requests from the CPU module, and error codes, error definitions, and causes of the errors, and actions against the errors.

Error code (hexadecimal)	Error details and causes	Action	Priority
1867Н 3064Н 3065Н 3066Н	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure	A malfunction has been detected in the FX5-ASL-M hardware. Reset the CPU module or power off and on the system. If the error occurs again, the FX5-ASL-M may be in failure. Please consult your local Mitsubishi Electric representative.	1 (high)
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error	 The voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply may be insufficient. Perform the following: Adjust the power supply voltage of the 24 V DC external power supply within the rated value (21.6 to 27.6 V DC). (The recommended voltage is 26.4 V DC.) Check that the power cables (24V, 0V) are not disconnected or short-circuited. When crimping the link connector, check that the pin layout is correct. If the power cables (24V, 0V) were short-circuited, the built-in fuse may have been fused. Check that the 24 V DC external power supply is properly connected to the terminal blocks of the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module. Check that there is no short circuit or incorrect wiring and screws are tightened sufficiently. 	2
0CC9H	DP/DN short error	 A short-circuit may be occurring in the transmission cables (DP, DN) or the maximum supply current of the transmission cables (DP, DN) may be exceeded. Perform the following: Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) are not short-circuited. When crimping the link connector, check that the pin layout is correct. Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) are not in contact with each other and that there is no incorrect wiring in the terminal block wiring of the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module. Correct the cables (wire diameter, total length) and modules (type, the number of connected modules) so that the current consumption of all the remote modules does not exceed the transmission cable supply current of the FX5-ASL-M. 	3

Error code (hexadecimal)	Error details and causes	Action	Priority
0CCAH	DP/DN disconnection error	 The transmission cables (DP, DN) may be disconnected, or there may be no response from the remote module. The remote module may be in failure or the system configuration may have been changed after the automatic address detection. Check 'Number of the error IDs' (Un\G8192) and 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320), find out the disconnected area, and perform the following: Check that the transmission cables are free from disconnection. Check that the cables are crimped with proper pin layout using link connectors appropriate to the wire diameter. Check that the transmission cables (DP, DN) are properly connected to the terminal block of the FX5-ASL-M. Check that there is no incorrect wiring and that screws are tightened sufficiently. When creating a new system, adding or removing a remote module, or changing the address of the remote module, execute the automatic address detection. After executing the automatic address detection function, check that the number of remote modules and the address are consistent with those of the actual system. If the LINK LED of the remote module does not flash, check that there is no disconnection, short circuit, incorrect wiring, or poor contact in the transmission cables (DP, DN) around the module. 	4
ОССВН	24V/DP short error	 A short-circuit may be occurring in the transmission cables (24V, DP). Perform the following: Check that the transmission cables (24V, DP) are not short-circuited. When crimping the link connector, check that the pin layout is correct. Check that the transmission cables (24V, DP) are not in contact with each other and that there is no incorrect wiring in the terminal block wiring of the FX5-ASL-M and the remote module. 	4
0D2CH 0D2DH	Remote module hardware error	A malfunction has been detected in the remote module hardware. Reset the CPU module or power off and on the system. Check that there is no influence from noise. If the error occurs again, the module may be in failure. Please consult your local Mitsubishi Electric representative.	5
0D2EH	Parameter access target module ID error	 The FX5-ASL-M accessed the parameter of the ID where the automatic address detection has not been executed. Check 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112), find out the error ID, and perform the following: Check that the remote module ID for parameter access in the actual system matches that of the program. Especially note that the input remote module ID is the input remote module address + 200H and that the I/O combined remote module ID is the I/O combined remote module ID is the I/O combined remote module, or changing the address of the remote module, execute the automatic address detection. After executing the automatic address detection function, check that the number of remote modules and the address are consistent with those of the actual system. 	5
0D2FH	Parameter value error	The remote module has detected a signal of writing a parameter that cannot be set to the remote module itself. Check 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112) to find out the error ID. Then check that the remote module parameter setting value is within the allowable setting range.	5
Error code (hexadecimal)	Error details and causes	Action	Priority
-----------------------------	----------------------------	--	----------
0D30H	Parameter access error	An ASLINK parameter access signal error has been detected. Check that there is no influence from noise.	5
0D31H	Remote module status error	The remote module has notified of error status. Check the target module's status details and solve the problem.	5
0D90H	Same ID used error	The same ID (address) has been set to some of the connected remote modules. Check 'Number of the alarm IDs' (Un\G9984) and 'Alarm ID information storage area' (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112) to find out the error ID. Check the ID (address) of the remote module, and then set a unique number.	5
0D91H	No ID setting error	 There is a remote module with no address setting. Perform the following: Set the address of the remote module. Set the address of the remote module to a value other than 255. 	5
0D92H	New ID error	The new ID (address) of the remote module may be in the following condition. • The ID has already been used. • The ID exceeds the allowable specification range. Check 'Connected module ID information storage area' (Un\G9217 to Un\G9344) and set another new ID (address).	5

APPENDIX

Appendix 1 External Dimensions

This chapter describes the external dimensions of the FX5-ASL-M.



(Unit: mm)

Appendix 2 Standards

Certification of UL, cUL standards

The FX5-ASL-M supports UL (UL, cUL) standards.

UL, cUL file number: E95239

For models that support UL standards, please consult your local Mitsubishi representative.

Compliance with EU Directive (CE marking)

This note does not guarantee that an entire machine produced in accordance with the contents of this note will comply with the following standards.

Compliance to EMC Directive and LVD Directive of the entire mechanical module should be checked by the user/ manufacturer. For more details, please consult your local Mitsubishi representative.

Requirement for compliance with EMC Directive

The following products have shown compliance through direct testing (of the identified standards below) and design analysis (through the creation of a technical construction file) to the European Directive for Electromagnetic Compatibility (2014/30/ EU) when used as directed by the appropriate documentation.

Attention

This product is designed for use in industrial applications.

Product compatibility

Type: Programmable controller (open type equipment)

Models: FX5 manufactured

from April 1st, 2017	FX5-ASL-M	5-ASL-M							
Electromagnetic compati	bility (EMC) directive	Remarks							
EN61131-2:2007 Programmab	le controllers	Compliance with all relevant aspects of the standard.							
- Equipment requirements and	tests	EMI							
		Radiated emission							
		Conducted emission							
		EMS							
		Radiated electromagnetic field							
		Fast transient burst							
		Electrostatic discharge							
		High-energy surge							
		 Voltage drops and interruptions 							
		Conducted RF							
		Power frequency magnetic field							

Caution for compliance with EU Directive

Caution for when the FX5-ASL-M is used

When the FX5-ASL-M is used, attach a ferrite core to the power supply of the CPU module.

Make 2 turns around the ferrite core and attach within approximately 200 mm from the terminal block and connectors of the power cable. (Ferrite core used in Mitsubishi Electric's test: E04SR401938 manufactured by SEIWA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.)

Connection with a remote module

Insert the noise filter for power supply cables between the power supply and cables regardless of the wiring method and length. For details, refer to the manual for the ASLINK FILTER (ANF-01) manufactured by Anywire Corporation.

Compliance with UKCA marking

The requirements for compliance with UKCA marking are the same as that with EU directive (CE marking).

Appendix 3 Module Label

The buffer memory of the FX5-ASL-M can be set using module label.

Structure of the module label

The module label name is defined with the following structure.

"Instance name"_"Module number"."Label name"_D



FX5ASLM_1.uInputInformationArea_D

■Instance name

The following is the instance name of the FX5-ASL-M.

Model	Instance name
FX5-ASL-M	FX5ASLM

■Module number

A sequential number starting with "1" for identifying a module from the one with the same instance name.

■Label name

A label name unique to the module.

∎_D

This symbol indicates that the module label is for direct access.

Туре	Description	Access timing
Direct access	The values read/written from/to the module labels are reflected to the module immediately. Although the execution time of the program is longer than the one at the refresh, the responsiveness is improved.	At writing to or reading from the module label

Appendix 4 Buffer Memory

Buffer memory is for data communications between the FX5-ASL-M and the CPU module or the FX5-ASL-M and remote modules.

When the CPU module is reset or the system is powered off and on, the data in the buffer memory are set back to the default (initial values).

List of buffer memory addresses

Address (decimal)	Address	Name	Initial value	Read/write
,	(hexadecimal)			
0 to 15	0000H to 000FH	Input information area	0	Read
16 to 26	0010H to 001AH	System area		1
27	001BH	Data access command	0	Read/write
28	001CH	Status information	0	Read
29	001DH	Latest error code storage area	0	Read
30	001EH	Module information	26592	Read
31	001FH	F/W version	—	Read
32	0020H	Number of input points setting value	0	Read
33	0021H	Number of output points setting value	0	Read
34 to 4095	0022H to 0FFFH	System area		
4096 to 4111	1000H to 100FH	Output information area	0	Read/write
4112 to 8191	1010H to 1FFFH	System area		
8192	2000H	Number of the error IDs	0	Read
8193 to 8320	2001H to 2080H	Error ID information storage area	0	Read
8321 to 8703	2081H to 21FFH	System area		
8704 to 8719	2200H to 220FH	Error ID information bit area (output)	0	Read
8720 to 8735	2210H to 221FH	System area		
8736 to 8751	2220H to 222FH	Error ID information bit area (input)	0	Read
8752 to 8959	2230H to 22FFH	System area		1
8960	2300H	Number of the connected modules	0	Read
8961 to 9215	2301H to 23FFH	System area		
9216	2400H	Number of the IDs of the connected modules	0	Read
9217 to 9344	2401H to 2480H	Connected module ID information storage area	0	Read
9345 to 9983	2481H to 26FFH	System area		
9984	2700H	Number of the alarm IDs	0	Read
9985 to 10112	2701H to 2780H	Alarm ID information storage area	0	Read
10113 to 10255	2781H to 280FH	System area		
10256	2810H	Latest error code storage area	0	Read
10257	2811H	Latest error ID storage area	0	Read
10258 to 10319	2812H to 284FH	System area	•	
10320	2850H	Parameter access setting	0	Read/write
10321	2851H	Parameter access target module ID specification	0	Read/write
10322	2852H	System area		
10323	2853H	Change ID specification	0	Read/write
10324 to 10495	2854H to 28FFH	System area		
10496 to 10751	2900H to 29FFH	Parameter storage location memory number	0	Read
		(output)		
10752 to 11007	2A00H to 2AFFH	System area	1	
11008 to 11263	2B00H to 2BFFH	Parameter storage location memory number (input)	0	Read
11264 to 12287	2C00H to 2FFFH	System area		
12288 to 18431	3000H to 47FFH	Parameter storage area	0	Read/write
18432 to 32767	4800H to 7FFFH	System area		



Do not write data to "System area".

Doing so may cause malfunction of the programmable controller system.

Details of buffer memory addresses

Input information area

This buffer memory area automatically stores the on/off status of the input signal of the remote module.

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0
Un\G0	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G1	31	30	29	28	27	26	25	24	23	22	21	20	19	18	17	16
Un\G2	47	46	45	44	43	42	41	40	39	38	37	36	35	34	33	32
Un\G3	63	62	61	60	59	58	57	56	55	54	53	52	51	50	49	48
Un\G4	79	78	77	76	75	74	73	72	71	70	69	68	67	66	65	64
Un\G5	95	94	93	92	91	90	89	88	87	86	85	84	83	82	81	80
Un\G6	111	110	109	108	107	106	105	104	103	102	101	100	99	98	97	96
Un\G7	127	126	125	124	123	122	121	120	119	118	117	116	115	114	113	112
Un\G8	143	142	141	140	139	138	137	136	135	134	133	132	131	130	129	128
Un\G9	159	158	157	156	155	154	153	152	151	150	149	148	147	146	145	144
Un\G10	175	174	173	172	171	170	169	168	167	166	165	164	163	162	161	160
Un\G11	191	190	189	188	187	186	185	184	183	182	181	180	179	178	177	176
Un\G12	207	206	205	204	203	202	201	200	199	198	197	196	195	194	193	192
Un\G13	223	222	221	220	219	218	217	216	215	214	213	212	211	210	209	208
Un\G14	239	238	237	236	235	234	233	232	231	230	229	228	227	226	225	224
Un\G15	255	254	253	252	251	250	249	248	247	246	245	244	243	242	241	240

■Input information area (Un\G0 to Un\G15)

Ex.

If a 2-point input remote module (address 10) is connected, the 2 bits from Un\G0.A are occupied for the input signal because the setting address is 10. (b10 and b11 of Un\G0 turn on or off.)

Data access command

Various data access commands from the CPU module to the FX5-ASL-M are stored as shown below.

■Data access command (Un\G27)

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0	
Un\G27	Refer to	o the follo	owing tab	le.													
Bit No.		Des	cription	l				Bit status									
												ON		OI	F		
Un\G27 b0		Error	flag clea	r comma	ind							Execution	ı	Sta	andby		
Un\G27 b1		Autor	matic add	lress det	ection co	mmand						Execution	ı	Sta	Standby		
Un\G27 b2		Over	lap addre	ess inspe	ction cor	nmand						Execution	ı	Sta	Standby		
Un\G27 b3 to 7		Syste	em area									_		-	_		
Un\G27 b8		Para	meter ac	cess req	uest com	mand fo	r the rem	ote mod	ule			Execution	ı	Sta	andby		
Un\G27 b9		Para	Parameter batch read command for the remote module Ex											Sta	Standby		
Un\G27 b10		Para	Parameter batch write command for the remote module Execution										۱	Sta	andby		
Un\G27 b11 to 15		System area — —															

Status information

The status information of the FX5-ASL-M is stored as shown below.

■Status information (Un\G28)

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0	
Un\G28	Refer to	o the follo	owing tab	ole.													
Bit No.		Des	cription	ı				Bit status									
												ON		0	OFF		
Un\G28 b0		Modu	ule READ	ΟY								Normal		Fa	ailure		
Un\G28 b1		DP/C	N short	error								Failure		N	ormal		
Un\G28 b2		24V/	DP short	error								Failure		N	ormal		
Un\G28 b3		Trans	smission	cable vo	ltage dro	p error						Failure		N	Normal		
Un\G28 b4		DP/D	N discor	nection	error							Failure		N	ormal		
Un\G28 b5 to 7		Syste	em area									_		-	—		
Un\G28 b8		Rem	ote modu	ıle alarm	signal							Failure		N	ormal		
Un\G28 b9		Para	meter ac	cess con	npletion	lag						Access c	ompletio	ו Pr	ogress		
Un\G28 b10		Para	meter ac	cess erro	or							Failure		N	ormal		
Un\G28 b11		Auto	Automatic address detection flag										ecuted	W	Waiting		
Un\G28 b12		Over	Overlap address inspection flag Being executed Wait										aiting				
Un\G28 b13 to 15		Syste	System area														

Latest error code storage area

■Latest error code storage area (Un\G29)

This buffer memory area stores the latest error code detected in the FX5-ASL-M. For details on the error codes, refer to the following.

Page 69 List of Error Codes

Module information

■Module information (Un\G30)

This buffer memory area stores the model code assigned to each individual intelligent function module.

F/W version

■F/W version (Un\G31)

This buffer memory area stores the FX5-ASL-M F/W version.

Ex.

For Ver.1.000, 1000 (decimal) is stored.

Number of input points setting value

■Number of input points setting value (Un\G32)

This buffer memory area stores the number of input points value set with GX Works3.

Number of output points setting value

■Number of output points setting value (Un\G33)

This buffer memory area stores the number of output points value set with GX Works3.

Output information area

When the on/off data of an output signal of a remote module is written from the CPU module, the remote module automatically outputs a signal.

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0
Un\G4096	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G4097	31	30	29	28	27	26	25	24	23	22	21	20	19	18	17	16
Un\G4098	47	46	45	44	43	42	41	40	39	38	37	36	35	34	33	32
Un\G4099	63	62	61	60	59	58	57	56	55	54	53	52	51	50	49	48
Un\G4100	79	78	77	76	75	74	73	72	71	70	69	68	67	66	65	64
Un\G4101	95	94	93	92	91	90	89	88	87	86	85	84	83	82	81	80
Un\G4102	111	110	109	108	107	106	105	104	103	102	101	100	99	98	97	96
Un\G4103	127	126	125	124	123	122	121	120	119	118	117	116	115	114	113	112
Un\G4104	143	142	141	140	139	138	137	136	135	134	133	132	131	130	129	128
Un\G4105	159	158	157	156	155	154	153	152	151	150	149	148	147	146	145	144
Un\G4106	175	174	173	172	171	170	169	168	167	166	165	164	163	162	161	160
Un\G4107	191	190	189	188	187	186	185	184	183	182	181	180	179	178	177	176
Un\G4108	207	206	205	204	203	202	201	200	199	198	197	196	195	194	193	192
Un\G4109	223	222	221	220	219	218	217	216	215	214	213	212	211	210	209	208
Un\G4110	239	238	237	236	235	234	233	232	231	230	229	228	227	226	225	224
Un\G4111	255	254	253	252	251	250	249	248	247	246	245	244	243	242	241	240

■Output information area (Un\G4096 to Un\G4111)

Ex.

If a 2-point output remote module (address 30) is connected, the 2 bits from Un\G4097.E are occupied for the output signal because the setting address is 30. (b14 and b15 of Un\G4097 turn on or off.)

Number of the error IDs

■Number of the error IDs (Un\G8192)

This buffer memory area stores the number of error IDs that send no response due to disconnection of the transmission cable (DP, DN) or a failure in the remote module alone among the IDs of the connected modules. (Up to 128 IDs)

The stored values are retained until the power is turned off and on or 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0) is turned off and on after the error is cleared.

However, if the error status automatic recovery function is enabled, the number of remote modules (number of error IDs) from which errors are cleared automatically decreases.

Data update timing

After automatic address detection, the data are updated as soon as a response error is detected.

Error ID information storage area

■Error ID information storage area (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320)

When the transmission cables (DP, DN) are disconnected or an error in a remote module or an error (error code: 0CCAH, 0D30H) occurs, this buffer memory area stores all the error IDs in the ascending order. (Up to 128 IDs)

The IDs to be stored are as follows.

- 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module
- 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module

The stored values are retained until the power is turned off and on or 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0) is turned off and on after the error is cleared.

However, if the error status automatic recovery function is enabled, the ID of a remote module from which an error is cleared turns off automatically.

Data update timing

After automatic address detection, the data are updated as soon as a response error is detected.

Number of the connected modules

■Number of the connected modules (Un\G8960)

This buffer memory area stores the number of remote modules detected by automatic address detection. (Up to 128 modules)

Number of the IDs of the connected modules

■Number of the IDs of the connected modules (Un\G9216)

This buffer memory area stores the number of IDs of the connected modules through automatic address detection. (Up to 128 IDs)

The number of stored IDs is retained even after the power supply is turned off.

Data update timing

The data are updated at the time of power-on or automatic address detection.

Connected module ID information storage area

■Connected module ID information storage area (Un\G9217 to Un\G9344)

This buffer memory area stores the ID information of all the remote modules connected to the FX5-ASL-M in the ascending order.

The IDs to be stored are as follows.

- · 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module
- · 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module

Information of a stored ID is retained even after the power supply is turned off.

Data update timing

The data are updated at the time of power-on or automatic address detection.

Number of the alarm IDs

■Number of the alarm IDs (Un\G9984)

When a status error occurs in a remote module or an ID or parameter setting error regarding a remote module occurs, this buffer memory area stores the number of IDs relevant to alarm occurrence. (Up to 128 IDs)

The stored values are retained until the power is turned off and on or 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0) is turned off and on after the error is cleared.

Data update timing

The data are updated when the power is turned on or when an alarm has occurred after automatic address detection.

Alarm ID information storage area

■Alarm ID information storage area (Un\G9985 to Un\G10112)

This buffer memory area stores the ID information of all the remote modules where an alarm has occurred in the ascending order.

The IDs to be stored are as follows.

- 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module
- 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module

The stored values are retained until the power is turned off and on or 'Error flag clear command' (Un\G27 b0) is turned off and on after the error is cleared.

Data update timing

The data are updated when the power is turned on or when an alarm has occurred after automatic address detection.

Error ID information bit area

These buffer memory areas show error IDs in units of bits for reference. These areas are used in the same manner as 'Error ID information storage area' (Un\G8193 to Un\G8320).

Error ID information bit area (output) (Un\G8704 to Un\G8719)

The bits corresponding to error IDs of an output remote module turn on.

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0
Un\G8704	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G8705	31	30	29	28	27	26	25	24	23	22	21	20	19	18	17	16
Un\G8706	47	46	45	44	43	42	41	40	39	38	37	36	35	34	33	32
Un\G8707	63	62	61	60	59	58	57	56	55	54	53	52	51	50	49	48
Un\G8708	79	78	77	76	75	74	73	72	71	70	69	68	67	66	65	64
Un\G8709	95	94	93	92	91	90	89	88	87	86	85	84	83	82	81	80
Un\G8710	111	110	109	108	107	106	105	104	103	102	101	100	99	98	97	96
Un\G8711	127	126	125	124	123	122	121	120	119	118	117	116	115	114	113	112
Un\G8712	143	142	141	140	139	138	137	136	135	134	133	132	131	130	129	128
Un\G8713	159	158	157	156	155	154	153	152	151	150	149	148	147	146	145	144
Un\G8714	175	174	173	172	171	170	169	168	167	166	165	164	163	162	161	160
Un\G8715	191	190	189	188	187	186	185	184	183	182	181	180	179	178	177	176
Un\G8716	207	206	205	204	203	202	201	200	199	198	197	196	195	194	193	192
Un\G8717	223	222	221	220	219	218	217	216	215	214	213	212	211	210	209	208
Un\G8718	239	238	237	236	235	234	233	232	231	230	229	228	227	226	225	224
Un\G8719	255	254	253	252	251	250	249	248	247	246	245	244	243	242	241	240

Error ID information bit area (input) (Un\G8736 to Un\G8751)

The bits corresponding to error IDs of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module turn on.

Address	b15	b14	b13	b12	b11	b10	b9	b8	b7	b6	b5	b4	b3	b2	b1	b0
Un\G8736	15	14	13	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
Un\G8737	31	30	29	28	27	26	25	24	23	22	21	20	19	18	17	16
Un\G8738	47	46	45	44	43	42	41	40	39	38	37	36	35	34	33	32
Un\G8739	63	62	61	60	59	58	57	56	55	54	53	52	51	50	49	48
Un\G8740	79	78	77	76	75	74	73	72	71	70	69	68	67	66	65	64
Un\G8741	95	94	93	92	91	90	89	88	87	86	85	84	83	82	81	80
Un\G8742	111	110	109	108	107	106	105	104	103	102	101	100	99	98	97	96
Un\G8743	127	126	125	124	123	122	121	120	119	118	117	116	115	114	113	112
Un\G8744	143	142	141	140	139	138	137	136	135	134	133	132	131	130	129	128
Un\G8745	159	158	157	156	155	154	153	152	151	150	149	148	147	146	145	144
Un\G8746	175	174	173	172	171	170	169	168	167	166	165	164	163	162	161	160
Un\G8747	191	190	189	188	187	186	185	184	183	182	181	180	179	178	177	176
Un\G8748	207	206	205	204	203	202	201	200	199	198	197	196	195	194	193	192
Un\G8749	223	222	221	220	219	218	217	216	215	214	213	212	211	210	209	208
Un\G8750	239	238	237	236	235	234	233	232	231	230	229	228	227	226	225	224
Un\G8751	255	254	253	252	251	250	249	248	247	246	245	244	243	242	241	240

Latest error code storage area

■Latest error code storage area (Un\G10256)

This buffer memory area stores the latest error code detected in the FX5-ASL-M. For details on the error codes, refer to the following.

Page 69 List of Error Codes

Latest error ID storage area

■Latest error ID storage area (Un\G10257)

This buffer memory area stores the error ID corresponding to the latest error code that occurred.

• Relation of error code and error ID

Error code (hexadecimal)	Description of error	Value of the error ID storage area
1867H 3064H 3065H 3066H	FX5-ASL-M hardware failure	— (Buffer memories cannot be accessed.)
0CC8H	Transmission cable voltage drop error	0FFFH (4095) Error contents without regard to the ID
0CC9H	DP/DN short error	0FFFH (4095) Error contents without regard to the ID
0CCAH	DP/DN disconnection error	Error ID
OCCBH	24V/DP short error	0FFFH (4095) Error contents without regard to the ID
0D2CH 0D2DH	Remote module hardware error	Error ID
0D2EH	Parameter access target module ID error	0FFFH (4095) Error contents without regard to the ID
0D2FH	Parameter value error	Error ID
0D30H	Parameter access error	Error ID
0D31H	Remote module status error	Error ID
0D90H	Same ID used error	Error ID
0D91H	No ID setting error	Error ID

Parameter access setting

■Parameter access setting (Un\G10320)

Specify the parameter access method. When a value other than those below is stored, the parameter is read.

- 0000H: Read (remote module \rightarrow FX5-ASL-M \rightarrow CPU module)
- 0001H: Write (CPU module \rightarrow FX5-ASL-M \rightarrow remote module)
- 0002H: Address change (CPU module \rightarrow FX5-ASL-M \rightarrow remote module)

Parameter access target module ID specification

■Parameter access target module ID specification (Un\G10321)

Specify the access ID for accessing the parameters of individual IDs.

Write one of the following to specify the ID.

- · 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module
- · 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module

Change ID specification

■Change ID specification (Un\G10323)

Specify a new ID (address) with the remote address change function.

Write one of the following to specify the ID.

- · 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module
- · 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module

Parameter storage location memory number

This buffer memory area stores the start addresses of the buffer memory areas of the parameter storage areas for each remote module.

The parameter storage area of each ID has 48 words. (Both Write area and Read area are included.)

■Parameter storage location memory number (output) (Un\G10496 to Un\G10751)

Address	Details
Un\G10496	Buffer memory start address of the output remote module ID 0000H
Un\G10497	Buffer memory start address of the output remote module ID 0001H
:	:
Un\G10750	Buffer memory start address of the output remote module ID 00FEH
Un\G10751	Buffer memory start address of the output remote module ID 00FFH

■Parameter storage location memory number (input) (Un\G11008 to Un\G11263)

Address	Details
Un\G11008	Buffer memory start address of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module ID 0200H
Un\G11009	Buffer memory start address of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module ID 0201H
:	:
Un\G11262	Buffer memory start address of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module ID 02FEH
Un\G11263	Buffer memory start address of the input remote module or I/O combined remote module ID 02FFH

Ex.

The following table describes the buffer memory areas corresponding to the addresses of remote modules.

- · Address 0: Input remote module
- Address 10: Output remote module
- · Address 100: Output remote module

Address	Data ^{*1}	Description
Un\G10506	3000H (12288)	Parameter storage start address of the output remote module with the address 10 (ID: 000AH)
Un\G10596	3030H (12336)	Parameter storage start address of the output remote module with the address 100 (ID: 0064H)
Un\G11008	3060H (12384)	Parameter storage start address of the input remote module with the address 0 (ID: 0200H)

*1 Data stored in the buffer memory address

For example, when "3000H" is stored in the buffer memory address "Un\G10506", it indicates that parameters are stored in the buffer memory addresses "Un\G12288 to Un\G12335".



For the parameter storage location memory number of a non-existing ID, 0000H is stored.

Parameter storage area

This buffer memory area stores parameters for remote modules with IDs.

■Parameter storage area (Un\G12288 to Un\G18431)

Address	Description	Details
Un\G12288 to Un\G12335	Parameter storage area 1 (48 words)	The parameter storage area of each ID has 48 words.
Un\G12336 to Un\G12383	Parameter storage area 2 (48 words)	Information of up to 128 parameters can be stored. The ID is stored in the start address of each parameter area.
:	:	A single storage area has 48 words and the data are sorted in the
Un\G18336 to Un\G18383	Parameter storage area 127 (48 words)	ascending order of IDs.
Un\G18384 to Un\G18431	Parameter storage area 128 (48 words)	 When adding a remote module or changing the ID of a remote module, execute automatic address detection again.

Ex.

When five remote modules are connected, the buffer memory addresses of the parameter storage areas are as follows.

Module	Parameter storage area	Device parameter read/write area
First remote module	Un\G12288 to Un\G12335	Un\G12289 to Un\G12307
Second remote module	Un\G12336 to Un\G12383	Un\G12337 to Un\G12355
Third remote module	Un\G12384 to Un\G12431	Un\G12385 to Un\G12403
Fourth remote module	Un\G12432 to Un\G12479	Un\G12433 to Un\G12451
Fifth remote module	Un\G12480 to Un\G12527	Un\G12481 to Un\G12499

Point *P*

The parameter of the remote module is moved over in order of ID and stored in 'Parameter storage area' (Un\G12288 to Un\G18431) after the automatic address detection function is executed.

Because of this, the address of the parameter storage area for the remote module later than the ID where the remote module is added or deleted in the AnyWireASLINK system is changed. (The parameter of a non-existing ID is deleted and displayed.)

Therefore, the address of the remote module later than the ID where the remote module is added or deleted must be changed when a program is created with buffer memory addresses directly specified. (This also applies if the ID is changed and sorting order is switched.)

With 'Parameter storage location memory number (output)' (Un\G10496 to Un\G10751) or 'Parameter storage location memory number (input)' (Un\G11008 to Un\G11263), a program that reads/writes the parameter can be created without considering the addition or deletion of remote modules.

48-word structure (details on parameter storage area)

The parameter storage area 1 (Un\G12288 to Un\G12335) is given as an example of the 48-word structure below.

Address	Description	Read/write	Parameter name
Un\G12288	Module ID	Read/write (FX5-ASL-M to remote module)	AnyWireASLINK parameter
Un\G12289	Device parameter 1	Read/write (FX5-ASL-M to remote module)	Device parameter
Un\G12290	Device parameter 2		
Un\G12291	Device parameter 3		
Un\G12292	Device parameter 4		
Un\G12293	Device parameter 5		
Un\G12294	Device parameter 6		
Un\G12295	Device parameter 7		
Un\G12296	Device parameter 8		
Un\G12297	Device parameter 9		
Un\G12298	Device parameter 10		
Un\G12299	Device parameter 11		
Un\G12300	Device parameter 12		
Un\G12301	Device parameter 13		
Un\G12302	Device parameter 14		
Un\G12303	Device parameter 15		
Un\G12304	Device parameter 16		
Un\G12305	Device parameter 17		
Un\G12306	Device parameter 18		
Un\G12307	Device parameter 19		
Un\G12308	Device parameter 1	Read (Remote module to FX5-ASL-M)	
Un\G12309	Device parameter 2		
Un\G12310	Device parameter 3		
Un\G12311	Device parameter 4		
Un\G12312	Device parameter 5		
Un\G12313	Device parameter 6		
Un\G12314	Device parameter 7		
Un\G12315	Device parameter 8		
Un\G12316	Device parameter 9		
Un\G12317	Device parameter 10		
Un\G12318	Device parameter 11		
Un\G12319	Device parameter 12		
Un\G12320	Device parameter 13		
Un\G12321	Device parameter 14		
Un\G12322	Device parameter 15		
Un\G12323	Device parameter 16		
Un\G12324	Device parameter 17		
Un\G12325	Device parameter 18		
Un\G12326	Device parameter 19		
Un\G12327	Status details	Read (Remote module to FX5-ASL-M)	AnyWireASLINK parameter
Un\G12328	Sensing level		
Un\G12329	System area	-	-
Un\G12330			
Un\G12331	Bit-point pattern	Read (Remote module to FX5-ASL-M)	AnyWireASLINK parameter
Un\G12332	Unit code		
Un\G12333	Device version		
Un\G12334	System area	—	-
Un\G12335			

■Parameters

Each remote module has the following types of parameters:

• Device parameter (19 types)

These parameters are unique to each remote module. The contents of the parameters vary depending on the types of remote modules. For details, refer to the specifications of the remote module.

AnyWireASLINK parameter (3 types)

These parameters are common to all the remote modules connected to AnyWireASLINK.

Name	Read/write	Corresponding buffer memory area	Detailed description
Module ID	Read/write	Un\G12288+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 1st of 48 words	 Indicates the remote module ID. 0000H to 00FFH: ID of an output remote module 0200H to 02FFH: ID of an input remote module or I/O combined remote module
Status details	Read	Un\G12327+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 40th of 48 words	Indicates the status of the remote module. The statuses of the remote modules can be checked with the on/off status of each bit. b 0: Module power supply status (Status of DP, DN side) • On: Remote module voltage drop • Off: No error b 1: Sensing level status • On: Sensing level status • On: Sensing level drop • Off: No error b 2: I/O disconnection • On: I/O disconnection • Off: No error b 3: I/O short-circuit • On: I/O short-circuit • Off: No error b 5: I/O power supply status (Status of 24V, 0V side) • Off: No error b 5: I/O power supply drop • Off: No error b 4, b6 to b15: Differs for each remote module Refer to the manual of the remote module.
Sensing level	Read	Un\G12328+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 41st of 48 words	Indicates the sensing level of the remote module. Refer to the manual of each remote module because the specification differs depending on the remote module.
Bit-point pattern	Read	Un\G12331+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 44th of 48 words	 b0 to b5: Number of occupied bit points 0 to 63 (00H to 3FH): Number of bit points occupied by the remote module^{*1} (Example) 0: Number of occupied bit points is 1 7: Number of occupied bit points is 8 b6, b7: I/O type 0: Input remote module 1: Output remote module 2: I/O combined remote module b8 to b15: System area (Example) 0001H: Indicates the input remote module of 2 input points. 0043H: Indicates the 1/O combined remote module of 4 input points.
Unit code	Read	Un\G12332+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 45th of 48 words	Indicates the module model number of the remote module. For the module model number of each remote module, refer to the web site of Anywire Corporation or the manual of the remote module.
Device version	Read	Un\G12333+n × 48 (n: 0 to 127) 46th of 48 words	Indicates the device version of the remote module.

*1 The read value+1 is the number of occupied bit points. For the I/O combined remote module, the number of points is a value adding the number of input points and the number of output points.

Appendix 5 Processing Time

This section describes the processing time related to the transmission of AnyWireASLINK.

Transmission cycle time

In the transmission cycle time, I/O data of the FX5-ASL-M and all the remote modules is updated.

The following table lists the transmission cycle times of the FX5-ASL-M.

Transmission points setting	64 points (32 input points/32 output points)	128 poi input p output	oints (64 points/64 points)	192 poir input po output p	nts (96 ints/96 points)	216 points (input points output point	(192 s/24 ts)	256 points (128 input points/12 output points)	3 :8	320 points (160 input points/160 output points)
One- transmission cycle time	2.4 ms	3.6 ms		4.8 ms		8.3 ms		6.0 ms		7.2 ms
Transmission points setting384 points (192 input points/192 output points/192		2 ii 0	384 points (2 input points output point	224 /160 ːs)	384 poin input poi output p	ts (256 ints/128 oints)	448 p input outpu	oints (224 points/224 it points)	44 in ou	8 points (256 put points/192 itput points)
One-transmission cycle time	8.3 ms	9	9.5 ms		10.7 ms		9.5 ms		10	.7 ms

Update timing of I/O data

Input

Unless the FX5-ASL-M receives the same data twice successively, data in the input area is not updated.

A minimum of one-transmission cycle time and a maximum of two-transmission cycle time are required as data response time.

Therefore, when input data is shorter than two-transmission cycle time, the input data may not be captured depending on the timing.

To ensure the response, provide an input signal that is longer than two-transmission cycle time.

Case of minimum data response time

If no change is detected in input data between two sampling timings, communication in one-transmission cycle time is possible.



(1) Sampling timing(2) Change of the input data(3) Update of the input data

■Case of maximum data response time

The input data is changed after a sampling, and thus the next sampling will be the first data reception. Time equivalent to twotransmission cycle time is required.



(1) Sampling timing

(2) Change of the input data

(3) Update of the input data

Output

As the double verification is executed on the remote module side, the time required is the same as that for input, namely a minimum of one-transmission cycle time and a maximum of two-transmission cycle time.

Response delay time

The following shows the response delay time of input and output.

Input response delay time

The figure below shows the time from a signal input to the remote module to turning on or off of a device of the CPU module. The input response delay time is the total of **1** to **4** in the following figure.



(1) Remote module

(2) AnyWireASLINK

(3) CPU module

No.	Description	Required time
0	Input response time on the remote module	Refer to the manual for the remote module connected to the system or the device connected to the remote module.
0	Transmission time	Transmission cycle time \times 2 The transmission cycle time differs depending on the number of transmission points. (\square Page 87 Transmission cycle time)
0	Processing time on the FX5-ASL-M	0.6 ms
0	Processing time on the programmable controller	Sequence scan time × 2

Output response delay time

The figure below shows the time from turning on or off of a device of the CPU module to turning on or off of an output of a remote module.

The output response delay time is the total of **1** to **4** in the following figure.



- (1) Remote module
- (2) AnyWireASLINK
- (3) CPU module

No.	Description	Required time
0	Processing time on the programmable controller	Sequence scan time
0	Processing time on the FX5-ASL-M	0.6 ms
0	Transmission time	Transmission cycle time \times 2 The transmission cycle time differs depending on the number of transmission points. (EFP age 87 Transmission cycle time)
9	Output response time on the remote module	Refer to the manual for the remote module connected to the system or the device connected to the remote module.

Parameter access response time

The parameters of AnyWireASLINK provide monitoring information of remote modules or the entire system and setting information of the remote modules.

Parameter data is synchronized between the buffer memory of the FX5-ASL-M and remote modules at a cycle different from that of the I/O data.

Use the following calculation formulas to obtain the parameter access response time.

Item	Calculation formula
Update interval time of an automatically updated parameter	Number of AnyWireASLINK connection IDs \times Transmission cycle time \times 3
Time required for reading parameters	Number of target IDs \times Transmission cycle time \times 27
Time required for writing parameters	Number of target IDs \times Transmission cycle time \times 39

Appendix 6 Added and Enhanced Functions

The following chart shows the added or changed functions of FX5-ASL-M with supported version information.

The firmware version can be confirmed with module diagnosis (CPU diagnosis). Refer to the following manuals for details on diagnosing the module (CPU diagnosis).

MELSEC iQ-F FX5S/FX5UJ/FX5U/FX5UC User's Manual (Hardware)

Refer to the CGX Works3 Operating Manual for details on the software version.

FX5UJ CPU module

Add/Change Function	Supported version	Reference		
	Firmware of the CPU module	Firmware of the FX5-ASL-M	Engineering tool	
FX5UJ CPU module is supported.	From the first	—	"1.060N" and above	—

FX5U/FX5UC CPU module

Add/Change Function	Reference						
	Firmware of the CPU module	of the CPU module Firmware of the FX5-ASL-M Engineering tool					
The maximum number of connected I/O points increased from 384 to 448 points	"1.100" and above	_	"1.047Z" and above	Page 17			

INDEX

0 to 9

48	-v	vc	orc	ls	str	u	ctu	ıre	Э	(d	le	tai	ils	c	on	р	a	ra	m	et	eı	r s	sto	or	a	g	е	ar	ea)
																													8	5

Α

Address	12
Address setting example	54
Alarm ID information storage area	80
AnyWireASLINK	12
AnyWireASLINK parameter	86
Automatic address detection	55

В

3					
Buffer memory				 7	΄6

С

Change ID specification	82
Connected module ID information storage	
area	80

D

Device parameter												86

Е

Error ID information bit area	81
Error ID information storage area	79

I

ID	12
Input information area	77
Input response delay time	88
Interlock program of automatic address	
detection	59

L	
Latest error code storage area	78,82
Latest error ID storage area	. 82

Μ

Ν

0

Output information area	79
Output response delay time	89

Ρ

Parameter access setting
Parameter access target module ID
specification
Parameter storage area
Parameter storage location memory number 83
Power supply cable (24V, 0V)47

R

RAS	3
Remote module	3

S

Sensing level	
Status details	

т

T-branch
Terminating unit
Transmission cable (DP, DN)
Transmission cable terminal block
Transmission cycle time
Tree branch

W

Wire ferrule .				47
----------------	--	--	--	----

REVISIONS

Revision date	Revision	Description
April 2017	A	First Edition
March 2018	В	■Added or modified parts RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, Section 2.3, 4.13, Appendix 4
July 2018	С	■Added or modified parts TERMS, Section 2.3, 4.1, 4.2, Appendix 5, 6
May 2019	D	■Added or modified parts SAFETY PRECAUTIONS, RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, TRADEMARKS
October 2019	E	 Added models FX5UJ CPU module Added or modified parts RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, Section 2.1, 2.3, Chapter 3, Section 4.2, 6.5, 7.2, 8.2, Appendix 5, 6
April 2020	F	■Added or modified parts Appendix 4, TRADEMARKS
March 2021	G	■Added or modified parts RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, Section 6.1, 6.2, 6.4, 9.4
April 2022	Н	■Added or modified parts RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, Section 2.1, 2.3, Chapter 3, Section 4.3, Appendix 2, 6
November 2022	J	■Added or modified part PRECAUTIONS REGARDING WARRANTY
October 2023	к	■Added or modified parts RELEVANT MANUALS, TERMS, GENERIC TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Section 2.3, 6.6, Appendix 2, 5
April 2024	L	■Added or modified parts TERMS, GENERIC TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Chapter 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, Section 8.2, Chapter 9, Appendix 2, 4, 5

Japanese manual number: SH-081795-M

This manual confers no industrial property rights or any rights of any other kind, nor does it confer any patent licenses. Mitsubishi Electric Corporation cannot be held responsible for any problems involving industrial property rights which may occur as a result of using the contents noted in this manual.

© 2017 MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

Please confirm the following product warranty details before using this product.

1. Gratis Warranty Term and Gratis Warranty Range

If any faults or defects (hereinafter "Failure") found to be the responsibility of Mitsubishi occurs during use of the product within the gratis warranty term, the product shall be repaired at no cost via the sales representative or Mitsubishi Service Company. However, if repairs are required onsite at domestic or overseas location, expenses to send an engineer will be solely at the customer's discretion. Mitsubishi shall not be held responsible for any re-commissioning, maintenance, or testing on-site that involves replacement of the failed module.

[Gratis Warranty Term]

The gratis warranty term of the product shall be for one year after the date of purchase or delivery to a designated place. Note that after manufacture and shipment from Mitsubishi, the maximum distribution period shall be six (6) months, and the longest gratis warranty term after manufacturing shall be eighteen (18) months. The gratis warranty term of repair parts shall not exceed the gratis warranty term before repairs.

[Gratis Warranty Range]

- (1) The range shall be limited to normal use within the usage state, usage methods and usage environment, etc., which follow the conditions and precautions, etc., given in the instruction manual, user's manual and caution labels on the product.
- (2) Even within the gratis warranty term, repairs shall be charged for in the following cases.
 - Failure occurring from inappropriate storage or handling, carelessness or negligence by the user. Failure caused by the user's hardware or software design.
 - 2. Failure caused by unapproved modifications, etc., to the product by the user.
 - 3. When the Mitsubishi product is assembled into a user's device, Failure that could have been avoided if functions or structures, judged as necessary in the legal safety measures the user's device is subject to or as necessary by industry standards, had been provided.
 - Failure that could have been avoided if consumable parts (battery, backlight, fuse, etc.) designated in the instruction manual had been correctly serviced or replaced.
 - Relay failure or output contact failure caused by usage beyond the specified life of contact (cycles).
 - Failure caused by external irresistible forces such as fires or abnormal voltages, and failure caused by force majeure such as earthquakes, lightning, wind and water damage.
 - Failure caused by reasons unpredictable by scientific technology standards at time of shipment from Mitsubishi.
 - 8. Any other failure found not to be the responsibility of Mitsubishi or that admitted not to be so by the user.

2. Onerous repair term after discontinuation of production

- Mitsubishi shall accept onerous product repairs for one (1) year after production of the product is discontinued.
 Discontinuation of production shall be notified with Mitsubishi Technical Bulletins, etc.
- (2) Product supply (including repair parts) is not available after production is discontinued.

3. Overseas service

Overseas, repairs shall be accepted by Mitsubishi's local overseas FA Center. Note that the repair conditions at each FA Center may differ.

4. Exclusion of loss in opportunity and secondary loss from warranty liability

Regardless of the gratis warranty term, Mitsubishi shall not be liable for compensation to:

- Damages caused by any cause found not to be the responsibility of Mitsubishi.
- (2) Loss in opportunity, lost profits incurred to the user by Failures of Mitsubishi products.
- (3) Special damages and secondary damages whether foreseeable or not, compensation for accidents, and compensation for damages to products other than Mitsubishi products.
- (4) Replacement by the user, maintenance of on-site equipment, start-up test run and other tasks.

5. Changes in product specifications

The specifications given in the catalogs, manuals or technical documents are subject to change without prior notice.

6. Product application

- (1) In using the Mitsubishi MELSEC programmable controller, the usage conditions shall be that the application will not lead to a major accident even if any problem or fault should occur in the programmable controller device, and that backup and fail-safe functions are systematically provided outside of the device for any problem or fault.
- (2) The Mitsubishi programmable controller has been designed and manufactured for applications in general industries, etc. Thus, applications in which the public could be affected such as in nuclear power plants and other power plants operated by respective power companies, and applications in which a special quality assurance system is required, such as for railway companies or public service purposes shall be excluded from the programmable controller applications.

In addition, applications in which human life or property that could be greatly affected, such as in aircraft, medical applications, incineration and fuel devices, manned transportation, equipment for recreation and amusement, and safety devices, shall also be excluded from the programmable controller range of applications.

However, in certain cases, some applications may be possible, providing the user consults their local Mitsubishi representative outlining the special requirements of the project, and providing that all parties concerned agree to the special circumstances, solely at the user's discretion.

INFORMATION AND SERVICES

For further information and services, please contact your local Mitsubishi Electric sales office or representative. Visit our website to find our locations worldwide.

MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC Factory Automation Global Website Locations Worldwide www.MitsubishiElectric.com/fa/about-us/overseas/

TRADEMARKS

Anywire and AnyWireASLINK are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Anywire Corporation.

The company names, system names and product names mentioned in this manual are either registered trademarks or trademarks of their respective companies.

In some cases, trademark symbols such as '[™]' or '[®]' are not specified in this manual.

Anywire Anywire Corporation www.anywire.jp

Manual number: SH(NA)-081796ENG-L

Model: FX5-U-ANYWIRE-E Model code: 09R569

MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE: TOKYO BLDG., 2-7-3, MARUNOUCHI, CHIYODA-KU, TOKYO 100-8310, JAPAN NAGOYA WORKS: 1-14, YADA-MINAMI 5-CHOME, HIGASHI-KU, NAGOYA 461-8670, JAPAN

When exported from Japan, this manual does not require application to the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry for service transaction permission.

Specifications subject to change without notice.